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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To the Board of Directors  
Connecticut Housing Finance Authority 
Rocky Hill, Connecticut 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Connecticut Housing Finance 
Authority, a component unit of the State of Connecticut, as of and for the years ended 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise Connecticut Housing Finance Authority’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits.  
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors 
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinions. 



 

2 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Connecticut Housing Finance Authority as of December 31, 2018 and 
2017, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principal 

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, 
Connecticut Housing Finance Authority adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. The net 
position of Connecticut Housing Finance Authority has been restated to recognize the net other 
postemployment benefit liability in accordance with GASB No. 75. Our opinion is not modified with 
respect to this matter.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and the pension and OPEB schedules, as listed in the table of 
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Connecticut Housing Finance Authority’s basic financial statements.  The 
supplementary information listed on the table of contents (combining schedules of net position and 
revenues, expenses and changes in net position) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   

The combining fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from 
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, 
the combining fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole.   
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 12, 
2019 on our consideration of Connecticut Housing Finance Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Connecticut Housing Finance Authority’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Connecticut Housing Finance 
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
April 12, 2019 
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CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

December 31, 2018 and 2017 

This section of the Connecticut Housing Finance Authority’s (the “Authority”) financial statements, 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, presents an overview of the Authority’s financial performance 
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. It provides an assessment of the Authority’s 
financial position and identifies the factors that in management’s view, significantly affected the 
Authority’s overall financial position. It may contain assumptions or conclusions by the Authority’s 
management that should not be considered a replacement for, and must be read in conjunction with, 
the financial statements described below. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This annual financial report consists of four parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic 
Financial Statements, Required Supplementary Information and Supplementary Information. The 
Authority is a self-supporting quasi-public agency established for the purpose of alleviating the shortage 
of affordable housing for low and moderate income households in the State of Connecticut and, when 
appropriate, to promote or maintain the economic development of Connecticut through employer-
assisted housing efforts. The financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
The Authority operates in a manner similar to a private business that includes activities such as the 
financing of home mortgage loans and multifamily and special needs housing real estate development. 

The Basic Financial Statements 

The Statement of Net Position provides information about the Authority’s financial condition at the end 
of the year by indicating the nature and amounts of its investments in resources (assets), its deferred 
outflows of resources, its obligations (liabilities), its deferred inflows of resources and its resulting net 
position. Net position represents total assets, plus total deferred outflows of resources, less total 
liabilities, less deferred inflows of resources. The organization of the statement of net position 
separates assets and liabilities into their current and non-current components. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position accounts for all of the current 
year’s revenues and expenses, measures the success of the Authority’s operations over the past year 
and can be used to determine how the Authority has funded its costs. 

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the Authority’s cash receipts, cash payments 
and net changes in cash resulting from operations, financing, capital and investing activities. 

The Notes to the Financial Statements 

The Notes to Financial Statements provide: 

• Information that is essential to understanding the basic financial statements, such as the
Authority’s accounting methods and policies.

• Details of contractual obligations, future commitments and contingencies of the Authority.
• Other events or developing situations that could materially affect the Authority’s financial

position.

Required Supplementary Information and Supplementary Information 

Required Supplementary Information represents information required by GASB, which supplements the 
basic financials statements and notes. These schedules provide additional information about the 
Authority’s proportionate share of the Net OPEB Liability, Net Pension Liability and schedules of the 
Authority’s contributions to the State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS). 

The Supplementary Information includes individual program schedules that present the Authority’s 
financial statements in more detail. 
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Financial Highlights – Year Ended December 31, 2018 

During 2018, the Authority closed $573.8 million in single family loans bringing homeownership to 3,206 
homebuyers. Through new construction and/or rehabilitation, the Authority financed 790 affordable 
multifamily units for a total investment commitment of $84.6 million.  

The Authority was able to restructure and refund approximately $216 
million of its outstanding bonds to reduce interest rates. By combining 
these issues with new debt using a strategic mix of fixed rates, variable 
rates and the use of derivatives, the Authority was able to establish below 
market interest rates on new mortgages for its borrowers, and strengthen 
the underlying structure of its cash flows.  

The Authority continued to recognize an increase in short term investment 
earnings as the rising interest rate environment continued during 2018. 
Conversely, the increase in rates resulted in a $49.5 million decrease in 
fair value of investments, substantially all of which is attributable to the 
reduction in fair value of its GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets 
(see Note 4 of the financial statements). Such investments are pledged as 
security for the bonds issued under the Authority’s various bond programs and are not expected to be 
sold prior to maturity. 
 

During 2018, the Authority issued five series of Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds totaling 
$707.7 million to provide financing for its home mortgage and multifamily mortgage housing programs. 
Under the Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance Program, the Authority issued four series of 
bonds totaling $25.8 million, $15.1 million of which are considered obligations of the State of 
Connecticut and are not reflected on the Authority’s Statements of Net Position, however are disclosed 
in the Conduit Debt section of Note 8. The proceeds of these funds were used to refund $21.5 million in 
outstanding bonds with the remainder being used to fund the financing of six group homes.  The group 
homes provide housing and support services for individuals with special needs. Under various 
programs, the Authority has also made funds available from net position.  
 
With the implementation of GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pension Plans, the corresponding restatement of the Authority’s 2017 financial statements 
resulted in the establishment of a net OPEB liability of $67.7 million, in addition to a corresponding 
Deferred Outflows of Resources of $2.7 million, Deferred Inflows of Resources of $1.7 million and a  
$66.8 million reduction in net position. The 2018 adjustments related to this new statement resulted in 
an ending Net OPEB Liability of $63.1 million, along with the related changes to Deferred Outflows and 
Inflows of Resources.  Note 2 and Note 14 provide further detail regarding the implementation of GASB 
75 and the OPEB plan. 
 
The Authority manages a Down Payment Assistance Program (DAP) that helps single family borrowers 
purchase their first home.  The DAP is a revolving program and was initially funded by the State of 
Connecticut.  Due to the importance of homeownership and down payment assistance for first time 
homebuyers, in 2018 the Authority secured $12 million in additional funding from the State to further 
capitalize the program.   
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Financial Highlights – Year Ended December 31, 2017 

During 2017, the Authority closed $511.2 million in single family loans bringing homeownership to 2,967 
homebuyers. Through new construction and/or rehabilitation, the Authority financed 1,744 affordable 
multifamily units for a total investment commitment of $84.7 million.  

The Authority was able to restructure and refund over $305 million of its outstanding bonds to reduce 
interest rates. By combining these issues with new debt using a strategic mix of fixed rates, variable 
rates and the use of derivatives, the Authority was able to establish below market interest rates on new 
mortgages for its borrowers, and strengthen the underlying structure of its cash flows.  

As interest rates continued to increase during 2017, the Authority enjoyed an increase in short term 
investment interest earnings. Conversely, the increase in rates resulted in a $5.9 million decrease in fair 
value of investments, substantially all of which is attributable to the reduction in fair value of its GNMA, 
FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets (see Note 4 of the financial statements). Such investments are 
pledged as security for the bonds issued under the Authority’s various bond programs and are not 
expected to be sold prior to maturity. 
 

During 2017, the Authority issued six series of Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds totaling 
$1.02 billion to provide financing for its home mortgage and multifamily mortgage housing programs. 
Under the Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance Program, the Authority issued five series of bonds 
totaling $37.4 million, the proceeds of which were to be used to refund $26.9 million in outstanding 
bonds with the remainder being used to fund the financing of 19 group homes.  The group homes 
provide housing and support services for individuals with special needs. Under various programs, the 
Authority has also made funds available from net position.  
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Financial Analysis of the Authority 
 

The following table summarizes the changes in Net Position between December 31, 2018, 2017 and 
2016: 

 
 
Change 2018/2017 
 

• Mortgage loans receivable decreased $135.4 million or 4.2%.  
• During 2018, the Authority’s multifamily and single family loan portfolios experienced overall 

net reductions. The home mortgage loan program, however, which includes both whole loans 
and mortgage loans securitized into mortgage backed securities (MBS’s), experienced a year-
over-year increase of 7.4%. 
 
 
 

2018 2017* 2016* 2018/2017 2017/2016
Assets
   Current assets $ 798.8 $ 858.3 $ 717.0 (6.9) % 19.7 %
   Capital assets 3.0 3.5 3.6 (14.3) (2.8)
   Noncurrent assets 4,962.8 4,743.5 4,525.0 4.6 4.8
      Total assets 5,764.6 5,605.3 5,245.6 2.8 6.9

Deferred outflows of resources
   Unamortized deferred bonds
      refunding costs 96.0 91.8 77.8 4.6 18.0
   Derivative Financial Instruments  -  - 28.3 (100.0)
   Deferred amounts for OPEB 2.6 2.7 2.9 (3.7) (6.9)
   Deferred amounts for pensions 16.8 22.0 25.2 (23.6) (12.7)
      Total deferred outflows
       of resources 115.4 116.5 134.2 (0.9) (13.2)

Liabilities
   Long-term bonds payable 4,378.4 4,199.9 3,978.2 4.3 5.6
   Net OPEB liability 63.1 67.7 65.7 (6.8) 3.0
   Net pension liability 67.9 67.1 69.6 1.2 (3.6)
   Other liabilities 537.1 550.3 449.6 (2.4) 22.4
      Total liabilities 5,046.5 4,885.0 4,563.1 3.3 7.1

Deferred inflow of resources
   Deferred amount for OPEB 6.9 1.7  - 306.3 100.0
   Deferred amount for pensions 8.4 10.2 12.8 (17.7) (20.3)
   Derivative Financial Instruments 49.5 10.7  - 362.6 100.0
      Total deferred inflows 
       of resources 64.8 22.6 12.8 186.7 76.6

Net position
   Net investment in 
      capital assets 3.0 3.5 3.6 (14.3) (2.8)
   Restricted 765.7 810.7 800.3 (5.6) 1.3

Total Net Position $ 768.7 $ 814.2 $ 803.9 (5.6) % 1.3 %

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

% Change(in millions)
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• Cash and investments in securities increased $297.6 million or 12.9% primarily resulting from: 
• A net decrease of $94.3 million in bond proceeds and other funds held to be used for the 

financing of mortgage loans, the retirement of bond debt and the payment of administrative 
costs.  

• The Authority continued to see growth in the home mortgage loan program. In 2018, 91% of 
new qualified home mortgage loans were securitized into mortgage backed securities. $429.4 
million in bond proceeds were used to directly purchase investments as opposed to whole 
loans.    

• A $49.5 million decrease attributable to the reduction in investment fair values specifically 
related to GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets (see Note 4 of the financial statements).  

• A $12 million increase in Down Payment Assistance Program funds (see note 16 of the 
financial statements).  

• Deferred outflows of resources decreased $1.0 million or 0.9%. This decrease is substantially 
attributed to: 
• A $5.3 million decrease in deferred amount for pensions. The deferred amounts are comprised 

of the difference between expected and actual experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, 
changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share 
of employer contributions and lastly, the employer contributions made between the 
measurement date of June 30, 2018 and the Authority’s year-end of December 31, 2018. 

• A $4.3 million increase in unamortized deferral on bond refundings. During 2018, the Authority 
refunded certain variable rate bonds that were being hedged by interest rate swaps. $15.0 
million in fair value of these swaps at the time of the refunding was reclassified from derivative 
financial instruments-deferred outflows to unamortized deferral on bond refundings. The 
amounts reclassified are then amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or new debt. 
The $15.0 million increase to unamortized deferral on bond refundings was offset by $10.7 
million of such amortizations. 

• Bonds payable increased by $183.2 million or 4.1%. The increase is attributed to: 
• An increase of $740.6 million as a result of new bonds issued including original issue premium. 
• An increase of $0.9 million due to capital appreciation bond accretions. 
• A decrease of $551.5 million as a result of redemptions. 
• A decrease of $6.8 million due to amortization of original issue premiums. 

• Net OPEB liability decreased by $4.6 million or 6.8%. Net pension liability increased by $0.8 
million or 1.2%. The Authority is a component unit of the State of Connecticut and participates in 
the State’s OPEB and pension plan and recorded these liabilities based on its proportionate share 
of the State of Connecticut’s net OPEB and pension liability. Both liabilities are adjusted annually 
based on an actuarial valuation prepared by the State (see Note 13 and Note 14 of the financial 
statements). 

• Deferred inflows of resources increased $42.2 million or 186.5%. This includes: 
• A $5.2 million increase in deferred amount for OPEB and $1.9 million decrease in deferred 

amounts for pensions.  The deferral changes are explained in further detail in Note 13 and Note 
14 of the financial statements. 

• A $38.9 million increase in derivative financial instruments deferred inflows. During 2018, the 
Authority refunded certain variable rate bonds that were being hedged by interest rate swaps.  
The $15 million fair value of the swaps at the time of the refundings resulted in an increase in 
derivative financial instruments-deferred inflows and corresponding increase to unamortized 
deferral on bond refundings.  There was a net increase in swap notional of $4.3 million which 
results in a reduction to deferred inflows. Lastly, there was a $28.2 million increase to the fair 
value of the Authority’s swap portfolio.  
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Change 2017/2016 
 

 Mortgage loans receivable decreased $95.3 million or 2.9%.  
 During 2017, the Authority’s multifamily loan portfolio experienced overall net growth, while its 

home mortgage whole loan portfolio continued to experience a net reduction. The home 
mortgage loan program, however, which includes both whole loans and mortgage loans 
securitized into mortgage backed securities (MBS’s), experienced a year-over-year increase of 
6.7%.   

 Cash and investments in securities increased $478.6 million or 26.2% primarily resulting from: 
 A net increase of $128.8 million in bond proceeds and other funds held to be used for the 

financing of mortgage loans, the retirement of bond debt and the payment of administrative 
costs.  

 The Authority continued to see growth in the home mortgage loan program. In 2017, 86% of 
new qualified home mortgage loans were securitized into mortgage backed securities. $355.7 
million in bond proceeds were used to directly purchase investments as opposed to whole 
loans.    

 A $5.9 million decrease attributable to the reduction in investment fair values specifically 
related to GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets (see Note 4 of the financial statements).  

 Accounts receivable and other assets decreased by $12.1 million or 16%. The majority of this 
reduction is due to the spend-down of Financing Adjustment Factor (FAF) funds. The use of FAF 
funds is governed by an agreement between the Authority and the Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD). 

 Bonds payable increased by $336.4 million or 8.2%. The increase is attributed to: 
 An increase of $1.0776 billion as a result of new bonds issued including original issue 

premium. 
 An increase of $0.9 million due to capital appreciation bond accretions. 
 A decrease of $737.0 million as a result of redemptions. 
 A decrease of $5.1 million due to amortization of original issue premiums. 

 Deferred outflows of resources decreased $17.7 million or 13.2%. This decrease is substantially 
attributed to: 
 A net increase of $14.0 million in unamortized deferral on bond refundings and net decrease of 

$28.3 million in accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives. During 2017 the 
Authority refunded certain variable rate bonds that were being hedged by interest rate swaps.  
$22.4 million in fair value of the swaps at the time of the refundings was reclassified from 
derivative financial instruments-deferred outflows to unamortized deferral on bond refundings. 
The amounts reclassed are then amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or new 
debt.  The $22.3 million increase to unamortized deferral on bond refundings was offset by 
$8.3 million of such amortizations. In addition, the Authority saw an increase in the fair value of 
the interest rate swaps resulting from the rise in interest rates. 

 A $3.2 million decrease in deferred amount for pensions. The deferred amounts are comprised 
of the difference between expected and actual experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, 
changes in proportion and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share 
of employer contributions and lastly, the employer contributions made between the 
measurement date of June 30, 2017 and the Authority’s year-end of December 31, 2017. 

 Net OPEB liability increased by $2.1 million or 3.2%. The Authority is a component unit of the 
State of Connecticut and participates in the State’s OPEB plan.  The OPEB liability has been 
recognized based on its proportionate share of the State of Connecticut’s net OPEB liability. Net 
OPEB liability is adjusted annually based on the actuarial valuation prepared by the State (see 
Note 2 and Note14 of the financial statements).  

 Net pension liability decreased by $2.5 million or 3.6%. The Authority is a component unit of the 
State of Connecticut and participates in the State’s pension plan and recorded the liability based 
on its proportionate share of the State of Connecticut’s net pension liability. Net pension liability is 
adjusted annually based on the actuarial valuation prepared by the State (see Note 13 of the 
financial statements). 
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 Deferred inflows of resources increased $9.8 million or 76.6%. This includes: 
 A $1.7 million increase in deferred amount for OPEB and $2.6 million decrease in deferred 

amounts for pensions.  The deferral changes are explained in further detail in Note 13 and Note 
14 of the financial statements. 

 During 2017, the Authority refunded certain variable rate bonds that were being hedged by 
interest rate swaps.  The fair value of the swaps at the time of the refundings was reclassified 
from derivative financial instruments-deferred outflows to unamortized deferral on bond 
refundings. The reclass resulted in the balance of $10.7 million being characterized as a 
deferred inflow. 
 

 

The home mortgage, rental housing and special needs housing loan portfolios are one of the 
Authority’s primary assets. 
 

New loans financed under the Authority’s home mortgage and special needs housing programs 
(including GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program Assets, excluding the acquired portfolio from the State) 
exceeded payoffs for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 as follows:  
 

 
 
The change in the multifamily rental housing and special needs housing portfolios (excluding the 
acquired portfolio from the State) is summarized as follows: 
 

 
 
As a result of legislation that was passed during calendar year 2002, on April 9, 2003 the Authority 
acquired housing assets from the Connecticut Department of Economic and Community Development 
from a reallocation of $85 million of its available cash resources. The par value of this acquired portfolio 
at December 31, 2003 was $213.3 million. After evaluation of the underlying loans by the Authority, the 
carrying value of this portfolio was written down to $65.0 million. 
 
During calendar year 2016, further legislation was passed which resulted in the Authority acquiring 
multifamily housing assets from the Connecticut Department of Housing from a reallocation of 
$15 million of the Authority’s available cash resources. The par value of this acquired portfolio at 
December 31, 2016 was $16.1 million. After evaluation of the underlying loans by the Authority, the 
carrying value of this portfolio was written down to zero. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

New Loans
Financed Payoffs Net

2018 $ 585.9 $ 185.7 $ 400.2
2017 533.6 199.8 333.8
2016 505.7 219.2 286.5

(in millions)

2018 2017 2016 2018/2017 2017/2016

Construction loan balances $ 125.6 $ 190.2 $ 154.7 (34.0) % 23.0 %
Permanent loan balances 1,106.8 1,064.5 1,077.0 4.0 (3.0)
Special needs housing permanent loan balances 65.2 61.0 62.9 6.9 (3.0)

Total Multifamily Mortgage Loans $ 1,297.6 $ 1,315.7 $ 1,294.6 (1.4) % 1.6 %

(in millions) % Change
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The status of these acquired portfolios combined, as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, is 
summarized as follows (in millions): 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mortgage loan earnings, including earnings on GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets, which are 
included in “interest on investments,” represent the Authority’s major source of operating revenue. The 
Authority also charges various program fees that include but are not limited to application fees, 
commitment fees, extension fees and financing fees.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Par Allowance Carrying
Value for Losses Amount

   Home mortgage loans $ 12.6 $ (11.7) $ 0.9
   Multifamily mortgage loans 168.8 (138.1) 30.7

   Total acquired portfolio $ 181.4 $ (149.8) $ 31.6

Allowance for losses % to par value 82.6%

Par Allowance Carrying
Value for Losses Amount

   Home mortgage loans $ 17.1 $ (16.1) $ 1.0
   Multifamily mortgage loans 169.6 (135.7) 33.9

   Total acquired portfolio $ 186.7 $ (151.8) $ 34.9

Allowance for losses % to par value 81.3%

Par Allowance Carrying
Value for Losses Amount

   Home mortgage loans $ 17.4 $ (16.3) $ 1.1
   Multifamily mortgage loans 170.8 (135.5) 35.3

   Total acquired portfolio $ 188.2 $ (151.8) $ 36.4

Allowance for losses % to par value 80.7%

December 31, 2016

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2018
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The following table summarizes the changes in operating income between December 31, 2018, 2017 
and 2016. 
  

 
 
Change 2018/2017 
 

• Total net position decreased $45.5 million in 2018. Operating loss was $7.8 million, a decrease of 
$24.7 million from the prior year. 

  
• Operating revenues increased $2.3 million or 1.0%. There has been a shift between interest on 

mortgage loans and interest on investments year-over-year as a substantial portion of new 
qualified mortgage loans are being securitized into mortgage-backed securities instead of 
being recognized as whole loans. On a combined basis, mortgage and investment interest 
income increased by $5.9 million in 2018. This is being driven by the $162 million net increase 
in program assets (mortgage loans receivable and investments in securities) year-over-year.  
Due in most part to the administration of Section 8 contracts in the multifamily portfolio, non- 
recurring fees were recognized during 2017. Since these were non-recurring, it has resulted in 
a $3.6 million decrease in fees and other income in 2018. 

• Operating expenses increased $27 million or 13.7%. This increase is substantially attributable 
to: 

• A $9.9 million increase in interest costs. The Authority’s bonds payable as of year-end was 
$183 million higher than the prior year. In addition, the interest rates being paid on the 
Authority’s variable rate bonds increased during 2018. 

• A $3.9 million increase in administrative costs.  
• The majority of this variance is reflected in fringe benefits and results from an 

increase in pension and OPEB costs allocated to the Authority per an actuarial 
analysis prepared by the State of Connecticut. See Notes 13 and 14 for further detail.   

2018 2017* 2016 2018/2017 2017/2016
Operating Revenues:
   Interest on mortgage loans $ 143.0 $ 151.8 $ 163.2 (5.8) % (7.0) %
   Interest on investments 62.4 47.7 37.0 30.7 29.0
   Fees and other income 10.6 14.2 6.8 (25.5) 108.9
      Total operating revenues 216.0 213.7 207.0 1.0 3.3

Operating Expenses:
   Interest 147.3 137.4 127.9 7.2 7.4
   Bond issuance costs 6.9 7.5 8.4 (8.5) (11.0)
   Servicer fees 12.1 11.5 11.2 5.5 2.5
   Administrative 42.7 38.8 38.3 9.9 1.5
   Provision for losses 14.8 1.6 18.0 828.1 (91.1)
      Total operating expenses 223.8 196.8 203.8 13.7  (3.4)

Operating income (7.8) 16.9 3.2 (146.2) 429.6

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
   Net increase (decrease) in the fair
     value of investments (49.5) (5.9) (24.6) (738.9) (75.9)
   Other 11.8 (0.7) (1.0) 1,785.7 (33.8)
      Total nonoperating income (loss) (37.7) (6.6) (25.6) (471.9) (74.2)

Change in Net Position $ (45.5) $ 10.3 $ (22.4) 541.9 % 146.0 %

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

(in millions) % Change
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• A $13.2 million increase in provision for losses over prior year.  The Authority sold the loans 
related to a distressed multifamily property through a competitive bid process that resulted in 
an additional charge-off to loss reserves in the amount of $11.3 million. The remaining $1.9 
variance is due to routine performance changes in the multifamily portfolio. 

• Nonoperating loss increased by $31.1 million and is substantially attributable to: 
•  The change in the fair value of the Authority’s investment portfolio, specifically the Authority’s 

GNMA, FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets discussed in Note 4 of the financial statements, 
resulted in a fair value reduction of $43.6 million more than prior year. This reduction in fair 
value was due to an increasing market interest rate environment. The change in market 
interest rates has an inverse relationship to the fair value of mortgage backed securities. 

• The $12 million in additional DAP program funding received from the State during 2018. No 
DAP funds were received in 2017.  

 

 
 

 

Change 2017/2016 
 

• Total net position increased $10.3 million in 2017. Operating income was $16.9 million, an 
increase of $13.7 million from the prior year. 

  
• Operating revenues increased $6.7 million or 3.3%. There has been a shift between interest on 

mortgage loans and interest on investments year-over-year due to a substantial portion of new 
qualified mortgage loans being securitized into mortgage-backed securities instead of being 
recognized as whole loans. When combined, the revenue variance between years is nominal. 
The majority of the increase in operating revenues is due to an increase in fees and other 
income. Several non-recurring fees were recognized in 2017, in most part due to the 
administration of Section 8 contracts in the multifamily portfolio. 

• Operating expenses decreased $7.0 million or 3.4%. This decrease is substantially attributable 
to: 

• A $9.5 million increase in interest costs. The Authority’s outstanding debt as of year-end was 
$328 million higher than the prior year. 

• A $16.4 million decrease in provision for losses over prior year.  A substantial increase in loss 
reserve was needed in 2016 to account for the acquisition of a multifamily portfolio acquired 
from the State in connection with Public Act 16-1. The Authority did not make any acquisition 
in 2017. 

• Nonoperating loss decreased by $19 million. The majority of this variance is due to the change 
in fair value of the Authority’s investment portfolio. The 2017 required mark-to-market 
adjustments resulted in $18.7 million less in fair value reduction compared to the prior year.  
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Debt Administration 
 
The following table summarizes the changes in bonds payable between December 31, 2018, 2017 and 
2016. More detailed information related to the Authority’s outstanding bond debt obligations is 
presented in Note 8 of the financial statements. 
 
                         (in millions)              % Change   
        2018        2017       2016  2018/2017  2017/2016 
 Bonds payable $ 4,617.1 $ 4,433.9 $ 4,097.6 4.1% 8.2% 
 
Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Finance Department of the 
Connecticut Housing Finance Authority at 999 West Street, Rocky Hill, CT 06067. 

 



CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY     
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
(in 000’s)

2018 2017*
Assets  

Restricted current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 364 $ 533
Mortgage loans receivable 134,424 129,571
Investments in securities 579,685 641,242
Real estate owned - multifamily 2,300 2,300
Accrued interest receivable on:

Mortgage loans 14,406 16,768
Securities 6,027 4,707

Accounts receivable and other assets 61,565 63,243
Total current assets 798,771 858,364

Restricted noncurrent assets:
Mortgage loans receivable, net of current portion 2,923,426 3,063,687
Investments in securities, net of current portion 2,022,711 1,663,393
Capital assets, net of depreciation  3,046 3,465
Real estate owned - single family 16,667 16,483

Total noncurrent assets 4,965,850 4,747,028

Total assets 5,764,621 5,605,392

Deferred Outflows of Resources  
Unamortized deferral on bond refundings 96,056 91,788
Deferred amount for OPEB 2,644 2,666
Deferred amount for pensions 16,775 22,050

Total deferred outflows of resources 115,475 116,504

Liabilities  
Current liabilities:

Escrow deposits and unearned revenue 39,680 43,821
Accrued interest payable 17,447 16,105
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 6,601 6,966
Bonds payable 238,711 234,010

Total current liabilities 302,439 300,902

Noncurrent liabilities
Escrow deposits and unearned revenue, net of current portion 147,739 138,627
Bonds payable, net of current portion   4,378,396 4,199,893
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps 86,917 110,830
Net OPEB liability 63,147 67,722
Net pension liability 67,896 67,070

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,744,095 4,584,142

Total liabilities 5,046,534 4,885,044

Deferred Inflows of Resources  
Deferred amount for OPEB 6,912 1,701
Deferred amount for pensions 8,367 10,248
Derivative financial Instruments 49,544 10,677

Total deferred inflows of resources 64,823 22,626

Net Position   
Net investment in capital assets 3,046 3,465
Restricted by bond indentures and/or enabling legislation 765,693 810,761

Total Net Position $ 768,739 $ 814,226

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

December 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY      
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
(in 000’s)

2018 2017*

Operating Revenues
Interest on mortgage loans $ 142,976 $ 151,752 
Interest on investments 62,375 47,734 
Fees and other income 10,604 14,232 

Total operating revenues 215,955 213,718 

Operating Expenses
Interest 147,288 137,424 
Bond issuance costs 6,858 7,497 
Servicer fees 12,115 11,482 
Administrative 42,678 38,832 
Provision for losses 14,801 1,595 

Total operating expenses 223,740 196,830 

Operating Income (Loss) (7,785) 16,888 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Net decrease in the fair value of investments (49,453) (5,938)
State and federal program funding 14,129 6,252 
State and federal program expenses (2,378) (6,906)

Net nonoperating expenses  (37,702) (6,592)

Change in Net Position (45,487) 10,296 

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as Restated 814,226 803,930 

Net Position - End of Year $ 768,739 $ 814,226 

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

Year Ended December 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY    
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(in 000’s) 

2018 2017*
Cash Flows from Operating Activities   

Cash received from interest on mortgage loans $ 145,338 $ 154,611 
Cash received from scheduled mortgage principal payments 89,299 88,231 
Cash received from mortgage principal prepayments 181,917 200,333 
Cash received from fees and other income 11,301 13,569 
Cash payments to purchase mortgage loans (155,059) (191,662)
Cash payments to employees (22,300) (20,638)
Cash payments to suppliers (27,660) (21,558)

Net cash provided by operating activities 222,836 222,886 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities   
Proceeds from escrow deposits 4,971 2,832 
Retirement of bonds payable (551,490) (737,047)
Proceeds from sales of bonds 740,550 1,077,592 
Interest paid (141,117) (130,593)
Bond issuance costs (6,827) (7,472)
Proceeds from state and federal program funding 14,108 6,252 
State and federal program costs (2,357) (6,906)

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 57,838 204,658 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities    
Purchase of computer software (35) (218)

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (35) (218)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities     
Proceeds from sales of and maturities of investment securities 384,559 95,555 
Purchase of investment securities (726,238) (579,206)
Sales (acquisition) of real estate owned (184) 9,801 
Interest received on investments 61,055 46,489 

Net cash used in investing activities (280,808) (427,361)

Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents  (169) (35)

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 533 568 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 364 $ 533 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities   
Operating income (loss)  $ (7,785) $ 16,888 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:  

Depreciation 454 320 
Provision for losses 14,801 1,595 
Bond issuance costs 6,858 7,497 
Interest on investments (62,375) (47,734)
Interest expense 147,288 137,424 
Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accrued interest receivable on mortgage loans 2,362 2,859 
Decrease in accounts receivable and other assets 1,678 12,055 
Decrease in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities  (365) (1,086)
Decrease in deferred amount for OPEB, outflows 22 251 
Increase in deferred amount for OPEB, inflows 5,211 1,701 
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability  (4,575) 2,073 
Decrease in deferred amount for pensions, outflows 5,275 3,190 
Decrease in deferred amount for pensions, inflows (1,881) (2,586)
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability  826 (2,558)
Decrease in mortgage loan and other receivables, net  115,042 90,997 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 222,836 $ 222,886 

Noncash Investing Activities
Net decrease in the fair value of investments $ (49,453) $ (5,938)

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

Year Ended December 31, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

17



CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

18 

NOTE 1 - AUTHORIZING LEGISLATION 

Connecticut Housing Finance Authority (the Authority) is a public instrumentality and political 
subdivision of the State of Connecticut.  It was created in 1969 for the purpose of increasing the 
housing supply and encouraging and assisting in the purchase, development and construction of 
housing for low and moderate-income families and persons throughout Connecticut.  The Authority 
operates pursuant to Chapter 134 of the Connecticut General Statutes, as amended (the Act).  As 
required by the Act, the Authority’s powers are exercised by a Board of Directors consisting of fifteen 
members, four of whom are State officials, seven of whom are appointed by the Governor and four of 
whom are appointed by leaders of the General Assembly. 

The Authority is authorized to issue bonds, notes and other obligations to fund loans to qualified 
borrowers for single family homes and multifamily developments.  Funding of loan programs on an on-
going basis is derived principally from bond proceeds and interest earned on loans and investments. 

The Authority is a component unit of the State of Connecticut, based on the criteria for defining the 
reporting entity as identified and described in the Government Accounting Standards Board’s 
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Sections 2100 and 2600. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Basis of Accounting 

The Authority is a self-supported entity and the accompanying financial statements are presented using 
the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues are 
recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred.  The financial 
statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  While detail sub-fund information is not 
presented, separate accounts are maintained for each program and include certain funds that are 
legally designated as to use.  The funds of the Authority and similar component units are proprietary 
fund types.   

Reporting Entity 

Connecticut Housing Finance Authority Funds 

Under the Act and the General Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bond Resolution of September 27, 
1972 (the Bond Resolution), the Authority is authorized to maintain Housing Mortgage General and 
Capital Reserve Funds.  In addition to the aforementioned funds, the Authority, as permitted by the Act, 
has established other funds.  Included in other funds are the Investment Trust Fund, which may be 
used to account for assets which are determined to be “surplus funds” under the terms of the Bond 
Resolution, and the Housing Mortgage Insurance Fund, which provides mortgage insurance. 
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Also included in other funds are: 

a. the Special Needs Housing Fund, the Special Needs Housing Capital Reserve Fund, the State 
Assistance Agreement Fund, and, as to the Authority’s Emergency Mortgage Assistance 
Payment (EMAP) Program:  the EMAP State Assistance Agreement Fund and the EMAP 
Revolving Loan Fund (collectively, the Special Needs Housing Program Funds), the Group 
Home Renewal and Replacement Fund, the Assisted Living Facilities Renewal and 
Replacement Fund and the Supportive Housing Renewal and Replacement Fund (collectively 
the Special Needs Housing Renewal and Replacement Funds).  The Authority is authorized to 
maintain the Special Needs Housing Program Funds and the Special Needs Housing Renewal 
and Replacement Funds (collectively the Special Needs Housing Funds) under the Act and the 
Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance Program Indenture (formerly known as the Group 
Home Mortgage Finance Program Indenture of Trust) (the Special Needs Indenture), 

b. the Single Family Special Obligation Bond and Other Bond Funds which the Authority is 
authorized to maintain under the Act, the Bond Resolution Providing for the Issuance of Single 
Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds (the SFSOB Resolution) of November 19, 2009, and the Bond 
Resolution Providing for the Issuance of Other Bonds for the Housing Mortgage Finance 
Program (Single Family) (the Single Family Other Bond Resolution) of November 19, 2009,  

c. the Multifamily Special Obligation Bond and Other Bond Funds which the Authority is authorized 
to maintain under the Act, the Multifamily Bond Resolution Providing for the Issuance of 
Multifamily Mortgage Revenue Bonds (the MFSOB Resolution) of November 19, 2009, and the 
Bond Resolution Providing for the Issuance of Other Bonds for the Housing Mortgage Finance 
Program (Multifamily) (the Multifamily Other Bond Resolution) of October 27, 2011, and 

d. The Qualified Energy Conservation Bond Fund which the Authority is authorized to maintain 
under the Act, the Qualified Energy Conservation Bond Resolution Providing for the Issuance of 
Qualified Energy Conservation Revenue Bonds (the QECB Resolution) of February 26, 2015. 

Blended Component Units 

The Authority’s operations include blended component units which are included in the Authority’s basic 
financial statements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 61.  These are legally separate entities 
for which the Authority is considered financially accountable.  The Authority is financially accountable 
for those units that make up its legal entity, as well as certain legally separate organizations because 
they have essentially the same board of directors and management personnel.  Blended component 
units are, in substance, part of the Authority’s operations; therefore, data from these units are combined 
with data of the primary Authority.  Interfund activity has been eliminated.  Additional information 
relating to these blended component units can be found in the supplementary information section of this 
report. 

State Housing Authority 
 
The State Housing Authority (the Corporation) is a quasi-public agency of the State of Connecticut 
and a subsidiary of the Authority.  It was created as the successor to the Connecticut Housing 
Authority (CHA) under Public Act No. 95-250, which transferred $1,282,000 to establish the 
Corporation.  The Corporation operates pursuant to Chapter 129 of the Connecticut General Statutes, 
as amended (the CHA Act).  This entity is currently inactive. 
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Real Estate Owned - Multifamily  
 
CHFA - Small Properties, Inc., was established as a tax-exempt organization and subsidiary of the 
Authority.  This organization operates pursuant to Section 8-244(c)(1) of the Connecticut General 
Statutes and was created to provide distinct accountability for multifamily real estate awaiting sale.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is comprised of accounts on deposit with financial institutions.  For purposes of reporting cash 
flows, highly liquid instruments with an original maturity of less than 90 days are generally considered to 
be cash equivalents, exclusive of the State of Connecticut Short Term Investment Fund and overnight 
sweeps which are considered to be investments in securities. 

Mortgage Loans Receivable 

Mortgage loans are carried at their principal balance net of allowance for losses and are generally 
secured by first liens on real property.  Interest on loans is accrued and credited to operations based on 
the principal amount outstanding.  The accrual of interest income is discontinued when a loan becomes 
90 days past due or in management’s opinion is deemed uncollectible as to principal or interest.  When 
interest accruals are discontinued, unpaid interest previously recorded as income is reversed and 
subsequently recognized only when received. 

Allowance for Losses 

The allowance for losses on the loan and real estate owned portfolios is provided through charges 
against current operations based on management’s periodic review of the loan and real estate owned 
portfolios.  This review considers such factors as the payment history of the loans, the current and 
projected cash flows of the borrowers, estimated value of the collateral, subsidies, historical loss 
experience for each type of insurance or guarantee and economic conditions. 

Investments in Securities 

The Authority is limited under the Act to (i) investment obligations issued or guaranteed by the United 
States Government or the State of Connecticut, (ii) participation certificates for the State of Connecticut 
Short Term Investment Fund (STIF) which is an investment pool administered by the State Treasurer, 
and (iii) other obligations which are legal investments for savings banks in Connecticut and to time 
deposits or certificates of deposit or other similar arrangements secured in such a manner as the 
Authority determines. 

Investments are carried at net asset value or at fair value with the exception of those investments 
maturing within one year, which are carried at amortized cost, excluding accrued interest.  

Capital Assets 

Land, building, building improvements and computer software exceeding $5,000 are capitalized at cost. 
Maintenance and repair expenses are charged to operations when incurred.  Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life; 32 years for building and building 
improvements and 7 years for computer software. 
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Compensated Absences 

Full-time employees accrue vacation or annual leave at the rate of fifteen to twenty-five days per year, 
depending on length of service.  Employees may accumulate leave time, subject to certain limitations, 
and upon retirement, termination or death may be compensated for certain accumulated amounts at 
their then current rates of pay.  The liability was $2,834,000 and $2,299,000 for 2018 and 2017, 
respectively, and is reflected in the statement of net position as a component of accounts payable and 
accrued liabilities.  

Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs are expensed when incurred and are classified as an operating expense in the 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  

Bond Premiums and Discounts 

Discount and premium on bonds issued are deferred and amortized as a component of interest 
expense using a method approximating the effective interest method.  

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Deferred outflows of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period 
or periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  Deferred 
inflows of resources represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future 
period or periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. 

The Authority reports deferred outflows and inflows related to pension and OPEB in the statements of 
net position which result from differences between expected and actual experience, changes in 
assumptions or other inputs and contributions after the measurement date.  These amounts are 
deferred and included in pension expense and OPEB expense in a systematic and rational manner 
over a period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided with benefits. 

GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, defines 
derivative instruments and requires that they be reported at fair value in the statements of net position.  
The swap agreements the Authority has entered into are characterized as derivatives.  Offsetting 
changes in fair value are carried on the statements of net position as either deferred inflows or outflows 
for swaps classified as effective hedges.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Authority’s swaps 
were considered effective hedges. 

Gains and losses in connection with advanced refundings of debt are recorded as either a deferred 
outflow or deferred inflow of resources and are amortized as a component of interest expense over the 
shorter of the remaining life of the old or the new debt. 
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Real Estate Owned 

Real estate acquired in satisfaction of a loan and in-substance foreclosures are reported separately in 
real estate owned.  In-substance foreclosures are properties in which the borrower has little or no 
equity in the collateral, where repayment of the loan is expected only from the operation or sale of the 
collateral, and the borrower either effectively abandons control of the property or the borrower has 
retained control of the property, but his ability to rebuild equity based on current financial conditions is 
considered doubtful.  Properties acquired by foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure and properties 
classified as in-substance foreclosures are transferred to real estate owned and recorded at the lower 
of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure and are adjusted, if 
necessary, at year end.  An allowance for losses on real estate owned is maintained for subsequent 
valuation adjustments on a specific property basis. 

Net OPEB Liability 

The Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability and expense associated with the 
Authority’s requirement to contribute to the State of Connecticut Other Post-Employment Benefits 
Program have been determined by an actuarial valuation prepared and reported by the State of 
Connecticut’s Other Post-Employment Benefits Program.  The net OPEB liability is measured as of a 
date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal year-end.  The 
measurement date relating to the Authority’s net OPEB liability is June 30th of the current reporting 
year. 

Net Pension Liability 

Net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected pension 
benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension liability), net of the pension 
plan’s fiduciary net position.  The pension plan’s fiduciary net position is determined using the same 
valuation methods that are used by the pension plan for the purposes of preparing its statement of 
fiduciary net position.  The net pension liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier 
than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal year-end.  The measurement date relating to the Authority’s 
net pension liability is June 30th of the current reporting year. 

Derivative Financial Instruments 

The Authority’s derivative financial instruments consist of interest rate swaps, all of which have been 
determined by the Authority to represent effective cash flow hedges.  Accordingly, changes in the fair 
value of the swaps are reported as either deferred outflows or inflows of resources on the statements of 
net position. 

The interest differentials to be paid or received under interest rate swaps are recognized as increases 
or decreases in interest expense of the related bond liability.  The fair value of the Authority’s position at 
year end in swap agreements is disclosed in Note 8. No gains or losses will result under the 
agreements unless an agreement is terminated prior to maturity or the counterparty defaults. 

Net Position 

Net position is classified in the following two categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets  
This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.  There is 
no outstanding debt related to the Authority’s capital assets. 
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Restricted by Bond Indentures and/or Enabling Legislation  
All funds and component units of the Authority that are not related to capital assets are restricted by 
the Bond Resolution, Special Needs Indenture, SFSOB Resolution, Single Family Other Bond 
Resolution, MFSOB Resolution, QECB Resolution and Multifamily Other Bond Resolution and/or the 
Act. 

Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses 

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues consist primarily of interest income on mortgage loans, fees and other charges related to 
mortgage loans and interest on investments, including fees and interest on GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC 
Program Asset investments more fully described in Note 4.  The Authority also recognizes revenues 
from other administrative fees as operating revenues.  Operating expenses include general and 
administrative expenses, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the amortization, issuance 
and sale of bonds; and other costs related to various loan programs.  Revenues or expenses not 
meeting this definition are generally reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Grants 

Grants received from federal and state governments are recognized as nonoperating revenue as the 
related expenditures are incurred in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions.  

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement 

In June 2015, GASB approved Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension (GASB 75), which revises and establishes new financial 
reporting requirements for most governments and governmental agencies that provide postemployment 
benefits other than pensions to their employees.  The provisions of this Statement are effective for 
periods beginning after June 15, 2017.  GASB 75 replaces the requirements of Statement No. 45, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, 
as Amended, and Statement No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multi-
Employer Plans, for OPEB.  Statement No. 75 requires the Authority to recognize a liability for 
postemployment benefits other than pensions.  The statement also enhances accountability and 
transparency through additional note disclosures and required supplemental information (RSI). 
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The following table summarizes the adjustments that have been made to restate the Authority’s 
financial statements to reflect the impact of implementing GASB Statement No. 75: 

As
Previously
Reported Adjustment As Restated

As of December 31, 2016
Net Position 866,662$     (62,732)$      803,930$     

As of December 31, 2017
Deferred outflows of resources 2,666$         2,666$         
Net OPEB liability 67,722 67,722
Deferred inflows of resources 1,701 1,701
Net position 880,983 (66,757) 814,226

For the year ended December 31, 2017
Administrative expenses 34,807$       4,025$         38,832$       
Operating income 20,913 (4,025) 16,888
Change in net position 14,321 (4,025) 10,296  

 
Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

In March 2018, GASB approved Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including 
Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements (GASB 88). The objective of this statement is to improve the 
information that is disclosed in notes to financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings 
and direct placements.  This statement also clarifies which liabilities should be included when disclosing 
information related to debt.  The Authority is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on 
the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the Authority’s 
financial statements for the year ending December 31, 2019. 

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE 

Fair Value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 
an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market, or if none exists, the most 
advantageous market, for the specific asset or liability at the measurement date (“exit price”). The fair 
value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles prioritizes the inputs to 
valuation techniques used to measure fair value as follows: 

Level 1 
Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date. 

Level 2 
Inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full 
term of the asset or liability. 

Level 3  
Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value 
measurement and are unobservable. 
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The Authority has the following investment and derivative instruments measured at fair value which are 
included in the statements of net position as of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017: 

Investments and Derivative Instruments Measured at Fair Value
(in thousands)
December 31, 2018

Quoted Prices Significant 
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable 
Fair Value Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
12/31/18 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Investments measured at fair value:
CMO $ 304 $ $ 304 $                          
GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program Assets 1,966,992 1,966,992                          
MBS's 402 402                          
Municipal Bonds 53,388 53,388                          
Structured Securities 1,100 1,100                          
US Government Agency Securities 835 835                          
US Treasury Bills 79,816 79,816                          

Total $ 2,102,837 $ 80,650,503        $ 2,022,186 $ -                        

Derivative Instruments measured at fair value:
Interest rate swaps $ (86,917)            $ -                         $ (86,917)         $ -                         

 
Investments and Derivative Instruments Measured at Fair Value
(in thousands)
December 31, 2017

Quoted Prices Significant 
in Active Other Significant

Markets for Observable Unobservable 
Fair Value Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
12/31/17 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Investments measured at fair value:
CMO $ 474 $ $ 474 $
GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program Assets 1,603,090 1,603,090 
MBS's 509 509 
Municipal Bonds 58,479 58,479 
Structured Securities 279 279 
US Government Agency Securities 878 878 

Total $ 1,663,709 $ 878,000             $ 1,662,831 $ -                        

Derivative Instruments measured at fair value:
Interest rate swaps $ (110,830)          $ -                         $ (110,830)       $ -                        
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NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES 

A. Deposits (in 000’s) 

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying amount reported as cash and cash equivalents on the 
statements of net position of the Authority represents deposits (including checking accounts and 
escrow accounts) of $364 (including $4 held under the Special Needs Housing Renewal and 
Replacement Funds) and $533 (including $11 held under the Special Needs Housing Renewal and 
Replacement Funds), respectively.  This entire amount is on deposit in independent financial 
institutions with a balance of $753 and $1,542 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.  Included 
in the carrying amount reported as cash and cash equivalents, are deposits held in escrow by the 
Authority at December 31, 2018 and 2017, of $176 and $443, respectively. 

Custodial Credit Risk  
Of the $753 and $1,542 financial institution balance at December 31, 2018 and 2017, $157 and $36, 
respectively, were held in the Authority’s name in the corporate trust division of one financial institution.  
These amounts were collateralized with a market value of underlying collateral equal to at least 100% 
of the amount on deposit with acceptable collateral compliant with 12 CFR § 9.10(b).  In addition, in 
compliance with 12 CFR § 9.13 these amounts were protected from any potential creditors of the 
financial institution.  The balances of $596 and $1,505, respectively, were held in demand deposit 
accounts at FDIC-insured institutions.  As of December 31, 2018, $346 was uninsured, $60 of which 
was collateralized with securities by the financial institution, but not in the Authority’s name.  As of 
December 31, 2017, $1,255 was uninsured, $151 of which was collateralized with securities by the 
financial institution, but not in the Authority’s name.  
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B. Investments in Securities (in 000’s) 

At December 31, 2018, the Authority held the following investments with the listed maturities bearing 
interest at annual rates ranging from 0% to 7.65%.  For investments other than Municipal Bonds, where 
no rating is indicated, the investments are direct obligations issued by the United States Government or 
its agencies or fully collateralized by such obligations.  Municipal Bonds represent the Authority’s Other 
Bonds which are more fully described in Note 8.  They are secured by the Bond Resolution Capital 
Reserve Fund and as such, are a contingent liability of the State of Connecticut. Ratings are displayed 
with the S&P Global Ratings listed first (if available), the Moody’s Investors Service second (if available) 
and the Fitch Rating last (if available) or NR for not-rated. 

Amortized
Cost, Net

Asset
Value or Less More

Fair Value Than 1 1 - 5 6 -10 Than 10

CMO (NR/NR/C) $ 304 $  $  $ 304 $  
GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program Assets 1,966,992   2,478 1,964,514 
MBS's 402  41 43 318 
Money Market Funds (AAAm/Aaa-mf/NR) 3,998 3,998    
Municipal Bonds 53,388 310 1,483 1,951 49,644 
STIF-rated (AAAm/NR/NR) 495,561 495,561    
Structured Securities-rated (NR/C/D) 1,100   1,100 
U.S. Government Agency Securities 835    835 
U.S. Treasury Bills 79,816 79,816   

Total Investments Held by All Funds
  and Component Units $ 2,602,396 $ 579,685 $ 1,524 $ 5,876 $ 2,015,311 

Restricted current assets:
   Capital Reserve Funds $ 13,813
   Renewal and Replacement Funds 9,594
   All other funds and component units 556,278
      Total restricted current assets 579,685

Restricted noncurrent assets:
   Capital Reserve Funds 505,774
   All other funds and component units 1,516,937
      Total restricted noncurrent assets 2,022,711

Total Investments Held by All Funds
  and Component Units $ 2,602,396

Investment Maturities (in Years)

 
 
Interest Rate Risk 

Exposure to declines in fair value is substantially limited to the Authority’s investment in the GNMA, 
FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets, discussed above.  The Authority’s investment policy requires 
diversification of its investment portfolio to eliminate the risk of loss resulting from, among other things, 
an over-concentration of assets in a specific maturity.  This policy also requires the Authority to attempt 
to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements and to seek diversification by 
staggering maturities in such a way that avoids undue concentration of assets in a specific maturity 
sector. 
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Credit Risk 

The Authority’s investments are limited under the Act to (i) United States Government obligations, 
including its agencies or instrumentalities, (ii) investments guaranteed by the State of Connecticut, 
(iii) participation certificates for the investment pool administered by the State Treasurer or (iv) other 
obligations which are legal investments for savings banks in the State of Connecticut.  The Money 
Market Funds are fully collateralized by obligations issued by the United States Government or its 
agencies.  Mortgage Backed Securities (MBSs) are fully collateralized by the Federal National 
Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) or the 
Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), and Collateralized Mortgage Obligations (CMOs) 
are fully collateralized by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
mortgage pools. Structured Securities are fully collateralized by Manufactured Housing Sales Contracts 
and Installment Loan Agreements.  At December 31, 2018, one CMO (fair value $304) and one 
Structured Security (fair value $1,100) were below Investment Grade rating standards.  At 
December 31, 2017, one CMO (fair value $474) and one Structured Security (fair value $279) were 
below Investment Grade rating standards.  At the time of their initial purchase, these two investments 
were classified as Investment Grade. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Authority’s investment policy requires diversification of its investment portfolio to reduce the risk of 
loss resulting from, among other things, an over-concentration of assets with a specific issuer.  As of 
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Authority had no investments in any one issuer that represents 5% 
or more of total investments, other than investments guaranteed by the U.S. Government (GNMA, 
FNMA and FHLMC Program Assets - fair value - $1,966,992 or 76% in 2018 and $1,603,090 or 70% in 
2017) or the State of Connecticut (STIF - net asset value - $495,561 or 19% in 2018 and $631,881 or 
27% in 2017). 

Custodial Credit Risk 

All investments exist in book entry form and are held by the Trustee or other financial institution in the 
Authority’s name or insured (fair value - $2,106,835 in 2018 and $1,672,754 in 2017) with the exception 
of the STIF (net asset value - $495,561 in 2018 and $631,881 in 2017 - rated AAAm in 2018 and 2017).  
The underlying value of the investment in the STIF’s pool is the same as the value of the pool’s shares.  
The pool is managed by the Cash Management Division of the State of Connecticut’s Treasurer’s 
Office.  The State Treasurer set up a cash management advisory board tasked with reviewing the 
pool’s portfolio, performance investment policies and procedures. 
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GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program Assets  

Since 1999, the Authority directed certain of its participating lenders to assign government insured 
Authority qualified home mortgage loans and sold a portion of its existing home mortgage loan portfolio 
for assembly into pools guaranteed by the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA).  
GNMA securities were issued backed by these home mortgage loans, and the Authority purchased the 
securities (GNMA Program Assets) with funds held in the Housing Mortgage Capital Reserve Fund.  In 
2000, the Authority expanded this program to allow the purchase of GNMA Program Assets with funds 
held in the Housing Mortgage General Fund.  As a result of this program expansion and in order to 
assure compliance with Bond Resolution requirements, the Authority transferred the $331,081 net 
position held in the Investment Trust Fund to the Housing Mortgage General Fund in 2001.  Since 
2001, GNMA Program Assets have also been purchased with funds held in the Special Needs Housing 
Fund and the Special Needs Housing Capital Reserve Fund.  In 2013, the Authority directed certain of 
its participating lenders to assign privately insured Authority qualified conventional home mortgage 
loans for assembly into pools guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA).  
These pools were securitized and are backed by these home mortgage loans.  In 2016, the Authority 
further expanded the program to securitize pools of home mortgage loans guaranteed by the Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program Assets are carried at 
fair value.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the fair value of GNMA, FNMA & FHLMC Program 
Asset investments was $1,966,992 and $1,603,090, respectively. 

Bond Resolution Capital Reserve Fund (in 000’s) 

The Bond Resolution Capital Reserve Fund is established pursuant to the Act and the Bond Resolution 
and is required to be maintained at an amount at least equal to the amount of principal, sinking fund 
installments and interest maturing and becoming due in the next succeeding calendar year ($309,324 
at December 31, 2018 and $256,542 at December 31, 2017) on all bonds of the Authority then 
outstanding under the Bond Resolution.  Further, the Authority may not issue additional bonds under 
the Bond Resolution unless the amount in the Bond Resolution Capital Reserve Fund is at least equal 
to the maximum amount of principal, sinking fund installments and interest maturing and becoming due 
in any succeeding calendar year ($323,388 at December 31, 2018 and $298,586 at December 31, 
2017) on all bonds of the Authority then outstanding under the Bond Resolution.  For purposes of 
satisfying these requirements, the Act and the Bond Resolution require that investments of the Bond 
Resolution Capital Reserve Fund be valued at the lowest of par, actual cost or market value.  To satisfy 
this calculation, all variable rate interest payments and receipts are assumed to be based on the 
average interest rates for the prior twelve months plus 200 basis points, interest payments on swapped 
bonds are included at the fixed rate on the swaps, and retirement of principal on bonds with mandatory 
tender dates are assumed in accordance with the sinking fund schedule of each respective bond series 
resolution. 
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Special Needs Indenture Capital Reserve Fund (in 000’s)  

The Special Needs Indenture Capital Reserve Fund is established pursuant to the Act and the Special 
Needs Indenture and is required to be maintained at an amount at least equal to the amount of 
principal, sinking fund installments and interest maturing and becoming due in the next succeeding 
calendar year ($5,167 at December 31, 2018 and $5,048 at December 31, 2017) on all bonds of the 
Authority then outstanding under the Special Needs Indenture.  Further, the Authority may not issue 
additional bonds under the Special Needs Indenture unless the amount in the Special Needs Indenture 
Capital Reserve Fund is at least equal to the maximum amount of principal, sinking fund installments 
and interest maturing and becoming due in any succeeding calendar year ($5,198 at December 31, 
2018 and $5,048 at December 31, 2017) on all bonds of the Authority then outstanding under the 
Special Needs Indenture.  For purposes of satisfying these requirements, the Act and the Special 
Needs Indenture require that investments of the Special Needs Indenture Capital Reserve Fund be 
valued at amortized cost or such other method as determined by the Authority to be reasonable and in 
the best interest of the bondholders, provided such other method is approved by the trustee and any 
applicable bond insurer. 

Restricted funds of the Bond Resolution and Special Needs Indenture Capital Reserve Funds consisted 
of the following: 

Special Special
Bond Needs Bond Needs

Resolution Indenture Total Resolution Indenture Total

Investment in securities $ 518,623   $ 5,440       $ 524,063   $ 714,254   $ 5,322       $ 719,576   
Accrued interest receivable 1,329       15            1,344       1,746       11            1,757       

Total Capital Reserve Funds $ 519,952   $ 5,455       $ 525,407   $ 716,000   $ 5,333       $ 721,333   

Restricted current assets:
Investments in securities $ 13,813     $ 4,476       $ 18,289     $ 27,577     $ 4,305       $ 31,882     
Accrued interest receivable 1,329       15            1,344       1,746       11            1,757       

   Total restricted current assets 15,142     4,491       19,633     29,323     4,316       33,639     

Restricted noncurrent assets:
Investments in securities 504,810   964          505,774   686,677   1,017       687,694   

Total Capital Reserve Funds $ 519,952   $ 5,455       $ 525,407   $ 716,000   $ 5,333       $ 721,333   

2018 2017
December 31,
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Special Needs Housing Renewal and Replacement Funds 

The Special Needs Housing Renewal and Replacement Funds are established pursuant to the Act and 
the Special Needs Indenture to provide funding for capital repairs and replacements exceeding $2,500 
for group homes, assisted living facilities and supportive housing facilities financed with the proceeds of 
bonds issued under the Special Needs Indenture.  At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the carrying 
amount of restricted funds of the Special Needs Housing Renewal and Replacement Funds consisted 
of the following (in 000’s): 

  2018  2017 
     
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4 $ 11 
Investments in securities  9,594  8,796 
Accrued interest receivable  19  10 
     
Total Special Needs Housing Renewal and Replacement Funds $ 9,617 $ 8,817 
 

NOTE 5 - MORTGAGE LOANS RECEIVABLE 

The Authority makes single family and multifamily loans to residents and companies domiciled in the 
State of Connecticut.  All such loans are collateralized by real estate located in the State of 
Connecticut.  The majority of the Authority’s loan portfolio is comprised of residential mortgages made 
to low and moderate income borrowers. 

The Authority has entered into agreements with various banks and other financial institutions for the 
servicing of the majority of its home mortgage loan portfolio.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 32% 
and 33%, respectively, of this portfolio was serviced by one financial institution. 
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Mortgage loans consisted of the following (in 000’s): 

  2018   2017 
     
Home mortgage loans:     
  Insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed 
   by the Veterans Administration 

    
$ 1,391,015 $ 1,487,246 

  Insured by private mortgage insurance companies  85,907  100,109 
  Uninsured reverse annuity mortgage loans  1,578  1,980 
  Uninsured, State of Connecticut supported EMAP loans  61,955  64,634 
  Uninsured, not guaranteed  426,883  452,087 
       Total home mortgage loans  1,967,338  2,106,056 
     
Multifamily mortgage loans:     
  Completed developments:     
    Insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed  
    by private insurer 

    
 31,022  32,607 

    Uninsured, federally subsidized  358,220  353,975 
    Uninsured, State of Connecticut subsidized special needs  
    housing mortgage loans 

    
 65,207  60,993 

    Uninsured, unsubsidized, not guaranteed  886,390  847,453 
       Total completed developments  1,340,839  1,295,028 
     
  Construction mortgage loans:     
    Uninsured, unsubsidized  125,615  190,227 
       Total construction mortgage loans  125,615  190,227 
       Total multifamily mortgage loans  1,466,454  1,485,255 
     
    Less allowance for losses  (375,942)  (398,053) 
       Total investments in mortgage loans  3,057,850  3,193,258 
     
  Restricted current assets  134,424  129,571 
  Restricted noncurrent assets  2,923,426  3,063,687 
     
Total Mortgage Loans Receivable $ 3,057,850 $ 3,193,258 
 
Single Family 
 
The Federal Housing Administration (FHA) home mortgage program insures the repayment of the 
unpaid principal amount of the mortgages.  The insurance proceeds are usually paid in cash, but, under 
certain programs, payments may be in the form of 20-year debentures which may have an interest rate 
less than that of the insured mortgage.  

The Veterans Administration (VA) mortgage program provides limited guarantees subject to the amount 
of the entitlement a veteran has available.  For loans between $45,000 and $144,000, the minimum VA 
guarantee amount is $22,500, with a maximum guarantee of up to 40% of the loan up to $36,000.  For 
loans of more than $144,000, the maximum VA guarantee is the lesser of 25% of the loan amount or 
25% of the Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac conforming loan limit for a single family residence, varying by 
county and the year involved. 
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EMAP Loan repayments are made by the homeowner in accordance with the provisions of Connecticut 
General Statutes § 8-265bb through 8-265kk.  These repayments are to be used solely for the benefit 
of the EMAP program.  Debt service on bonds issued under the Special Needs Indenture for the 
purpose of financing EMAP Loans is paid by the State of Connecticut. 

The current average interest rate of the Authority’s outstanding single family portfolio is 4.13% with a 
30-year payment term. 

Multifamily 

Through the issuance of bonds under the Special Needs Indenture and/or amounts received from the 
State of Connecticut, the Authority has made special needs housing mortgage loans to (i) finance 
community based residential facilities for persons with intellectual disabilities (Group Home), (ii) finance 
projects for assisted living communities for residents who need help with one or more activities of daily 
living (Assisted Living Facility), (iii) finance residential facility housing for up to one or more persons or 
families that are homeless or at risk of homelessness (Supportive Housing Facility) and (iv) provide 
financial assistance to homeowners at risk of foreclosure (EMAP Loan).  Mortgage loan repayments for 
the Group Home, Assisted Living Facility and Supportive Housing Facility (collectively the Special 
Needs Housing Loans) which require regularly scheduled payments are made through subsidies 
received from the State of Connecticut.  For Special Needs Housing Loans that do not require regularly 
scheduled payments, the debt service on the bonds is paid by the State of Connecticut. 

The Authority has entered into a risk-sharing agreement with the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) whereby HUD will provide partial mortgage insurance on affordable 
multifamily housing projects processed by the Authority.  The risk of loss to the Authority varies from 
10% to 50% or more depending on the level of participation by HUD. 

Construction loans earn interest at rates ranging from 0% to 5.54% at December 31, 2018 and 0% to 
6.9% at December 31, 2017, and will generally be payable over 2 years. Upon completion of each 
development, the related permanent mortgage loan will typically be provided by the Authority. 
Permanent loans earn interest at rates ranging from 0% to 12% at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and 
will generally be payable over 40 years. 
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NOTE 6 - REAL ESTATE OWNED 

Real Estate Owned (in 000’s) 

Single Single 
Family Multifamily Total Family Multifamily Total

Real estate owned $ 18,211 $ 2,300 $ 20,511 $ 18,280 $ 2,300 $ 20,580 
Allowance for losses (1,544) (1,544) (1,797)  (1,797)

Real Estate Owned-   
 Carrying Amount $ 16,667 $ 2,300 $ 18,967 $ 16,483 $ 2,300 $ 18,783 

2018 2017
December 31,

 
With respect to single family real estate owned, the majority of such assets are at least partially insured 
or guaranteed by outside parties, it is anticipated that the Authority will recover substantially all of the 
balance of these assets through such insurance and from proceeds from the sale of the underlying 
properties. 

With respect to multifamily real estate owned, the Authority is holding such assets for subsequent sale 
in a manner that will allow the maximization of value.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, one property 
remained in the multifamily real estate owned portfolio.  
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NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows (in 000’s): 

   Balance Balance
January 1, Additions/ December 31,

2018 (Deletions) 2018

Capital Assets:
   Land $ 851 $ $ 851 
   Building 2,851 2,851 
   Improvements 2,085 2,085 
   Computer software 1,314 35 1,349 

7,101 35 7,136 
Less accumulated depreciation  (3,636)  (454)  (4,090)

Capital Assets, Net $ 3,465 $  (419) $ 3,046 

Balance Balance
January 1, Additions/ December 31,

2017 (Deletions) 2017

Capital Assets:
   Land $ 851 $ $ 851 
   Building 2,851 2,851 
   Improvements 2,085 2,085 
   Computer software 1,096 218 1,314 

6,883 218 7,101 
Less accumulated depreciation  (3,316)  (320)  (3,636)

Capital Assets, Net $ 3,567 $  (102) $ 3,465 

 
 
NOTE 8 - BONDS PAYABLE  

The Act authorizes the Authority to issue its own bonds, bond anticipation notes and other obligations in 
such principal amounts as, in the opinion of the Authority, will be necessary to provide sufficient funds 
for carrying out its purposes.  The State legislature enacted legislation that provides the authority to 
enter into agreements to reduce the rate of borrowing and moderate the effect of bond interest rate 
fluctuations through the use of contracts commonly known as interest rate swap agreements and 
similar type contracts.  The Authority’s obligations are not debt of the State of Connecticut, and the 
State is not liable thereon. 

The Authority has entered into liquidity agreements with various providers for all variable rate demand 
bonds, which assure that any bonds purchased by the liquidity provider can be refinanced on a long-
term basis.  
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Bond Resolution 

Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds issued under the Bond Resolution bear fixed interest at 
rates ranging from 0.0% to 6.274% as of December 31, 2018 and from 0.0% to 6.625% as of 
December 31, 2017, and are subject to certain redemption provisions and mature in years through 
2058 and 2057 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

The following assets of the Authority are pledged for the payment of bond principal and interest under 
the Bond Resolution:  1) the proceeds derived from the sale of bonds issued under the Bond 
Resolution, 2) all mortgage repayments with respect to long-term mortgage and construction loans 
financed, or deemed to have been financed from the Housing Mortgage General Fund, and 3) all 
monies and securities of the Housing Mortgage General Fund and the Bond Resolution Capital 
Reserve Fund. 

Special Needs Indenture 

Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds issued under the Special Needs Indenture 
bear fixed interest at rates ranging from 1.00% to 5.00% at December 31, 2018 and from 1.00% to 
5.25% at December 31, 2017, are subject to certain redemption provisions and mature in years through 
2048 and 2046 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

The following assets of the Authority are pledged for the payment of bond principal and interest under 
the Special Needs Indenture:  1) the proceeds derived from the sale of bonds issued under the Special 
Needs Indenture, 2) all mortgage repayments with respect to Special Needs Housing mortgages 
financed from the Special Needs Housing Fund, and 3) all monies and securities of the Special Needs 
Housing Fund, the State Assistance Agreement Fund, the EMAP State Assistance Agreement Fund 
and the Special Needs Housing Capital Reserve Fund. 

SFSOB Resolution, MFSOB Resolution, Single Family Other Bond Resolution and Multifamily 
Other Bond Resolution 

In October 2009, the U.S. Department of Treasury (the Treasury), the Federal Housing Finance Agency 
and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac (the GSEs) announced the Federal New Issue Bond Program (the 
Federal NIBP) authorized by the Housing Economic Recovery Act of 2008.  The Federal NIBP allowed 
the GSEs to purchase bonds from housing finance agencies (the HFAs) and package them into GSE-
guaranteed securities for delivery to and purchase by the Treasury.  These HFA bonds were to be 
issued to finance single family or multifamily mortgage loans.  If issued to finance single family loans, 
the HFA bonds were not to exceed 60% of the bond issue.  The HFA bonds were required to be issued 
at fixed rates to maturity or monthly rate reset bonds that were to convert to rates fixed to maturity in 
calendar year 2010.  In September 2010, the Treasury announced an extension to the end of this 
conversion period to December 31, 2011.  The fixed interest rates were expected to be lower than 
prevailing interest rates available through a public bond offering.  Pursuant to this program and based 
on an allocation for GSE purchase received from the Treasury, the Authority issued $191,720,000 in 
Single Family Special Obligation Bonds under the SFSOB Resolution and $27,610,000 in Multifamily 
Special Obligation Bonds under the MFSOB Resolution (collectively, the NIBP Escrow Bonds) on 
December 30, 2009 that settled on January 12, 2010.  The proceeds of the NIBP Escrow Bonds were 
held in escrow pending the issuance by the Authority of additional taxable or tax-exempt bonds (the 
NIBP Market Bonds).  As of December 31, 2011, all NIBP Escrow Bonds had been converted to long-
term fixed rates of interest. 
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Bonds issued under the SFSOB Resolution and the MFSOB Resolution are special obligations of the 
Authority payable solely from and secured by assets pledged under the (i) SFSOB Resolution for Single 
Family Special Obligation Bonds, and (ii) MFSOB Resolution for Multifamily Special Obligation Bonds. 

In connection with the Federal NIBP, the Authority has also authorized the Single Family Other Bond 
Resolution and the Multifamily Other Bond Resolution (Other Bond Resolutions) to issue bonds (Other 
Bonds) secured by the Bond Resolution Capital Reserve Fund under the Bond Resolution.  Proceeds 
of the Other Bonds, the NIBP Escrow Bonds and the NIBP Market Bonds are intended to be used to 
(i) participate in the purchase or making of single-family or multifamily mortgage loans under the 
Authority’s Housing Mortgage Finance Program, (ii) fund reserves and (iii) pay related bond costs.  
Bonds issued under the Other Bond Resolutions are general obligations of the Authority. 

QECB Resolution 

The Authority adopted the Qualified Energy Conservation Bond Resolution (QECB Resolution) on 
February 26, 2015.  The bond proceeds are intended to be used for energy conservation improvements 
and replacements for multifamily housing developments owned or managed by participating public 
housing authorities.  Bonds issued under the QECB Resolution are secured by, among others, the loan 
repayments from the QECB funded loans, the QECB federal tax credit subsidy and are general 
obligations of the Authority.  The Authority will no longer issue bonds under the QECB Resolution due 
to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. 
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Bonds payable as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows (in 000’s): 

Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds
Amount Due

Maturity Interest Rate Within 1
Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

1989 Series D 1993-2024 Variable $ 14,815 $ 16,710 $ 2,040               
1998 Series D 2020-2025 Variable 25,000 25,000                         
1999 Series A 2014-2018 Variable 11,400
2001 Series D 2012-2027 Index 16,865 18,245 1,460               
2004 Series A 2017-2035 Variable 15,000 15,000 1,000               
2007 Series A 2013-2038 4.00 - 4.95 24,480 25,000 1,055               
2007 Series C 2010-2049 5.15 845
2008 Series C 2009-2018 3.86 - 6.16 80
2008 Series D 2009-2038 2.875 - 6.625 7,000
2008 Series E 2021-2039 Variable 83,985
2008 Series F 2009-2018 2.10 - 6.02 290
2008 Series G 2011-2038 3.40 - 6.00 7,675
2009 Series C 2010-2039 0.30 - 4.95/Variable 12,435
2009 Series D 2010-2039 5.071 - 6.274 57,040 57,570 560                  
2009 Series F 2011-2039 0.40 - 4.65 3,640 3,695 55                    
2010 Series A 2010-2039 0.25 - 4.80/Variable 57,300 57,780 11,285             
2010 Series D 2011-2031 0.673 - 5.00 5,065
2010 Series E 2011-2052 0.70 - 5.25 33,805 34,635 830                  
2010 Series G 2013-2031 0.20 - 3.05 15,825 17,565 960                  
2011 Series B 2011-2041 0.30 - 5.00 2,030 2,560
2011 Series C 2018-2035 Variable 46,450
2011 Series F 2012-2053 0.25 - 5.00 34,490 34,865 405                  
2012 Series A 2012-2032 0.17 - 3.55 92,395 105,525 13,740             
2012 Series B 2013-2043 0.60 - 4.40 40,950 42,455 1,590               
2012 Series C 2017-2038 2.00 - 3.875 115,235 131,085 6,395               
2012 Series D 2013-2042 0.22 - 4.15/Variable 65,180 65,180 1,220               
2012 Series F 2013-2042 0.25 - 3.40 97,690 105,010 4,880               
2012 Series G 2013-2055  0.25 - 4.00 59,325 60,035 700                  
2013 Series A 2013-2041 Index 275,055 282,570 7,945               
2013 Series B 2014-2034 0.45 - 4.00/Variable 78,735 97,995 7,335               
2013 Series C 2014-2046 Index 38,530 38,870 365                  
2014 Series A 2014-2044 0.15 - 4.00 24,210 30,605 4,950               
2014 Series B 2016-2044 0.50 - 4.15/Index 48,615 49,130 540                  
2014 Series C 2015-2044 0.21 - 4.00/Variable 83,680 91,980 21,845             
2014 Series D 2015-2044 0.20 - 4.00/Variable 137,455 148,395 25,750             
2014 Series E 2015-2032 Index 13,440 13,886 13,440             
2014 Series F 2015-2054 0.40 - 4.278/Index 41,810 57,035 740                  
2015 Series A 2015-2045 0.15 - 3.85 119,565 128,605 3,360               
2015 Series B 2025-2030 Index 35,000 35,000                         
2015 Series C 2016-2045 0.35 - 3.90/Variable 106,665 116,165 3,660               
2015 Series E 2016-2055 0.45 - 4.00/Index 29,855 51,105 160                  
2016 Series A 2016-2045 0.45 - 4.00/Variable 165,180 174,480 4,030               
2016 Series B 2017-2046 0.75 - 3.55/Variable 171,145 180,160 3,850               
2016 Series C 2017-2051 0.55 - 3.50/Variable 57,270 84,640 1,260               
2016 Series D 2019-2050 3.25 33,665 19,105 21,165             
2016 Series E 2017-2046 0.80 - 3.50/Variable 167,550 177,165 4,475               
2016 Series F 2017-2046 0.00 - 3.50/Variable 187,735 197,035 4,695               
2016 Series G 2018-2056 1.00 - 3.90/Index 33,915 36,590 15,935             
2017 Series A 2017-2047 1.00 - 4.00/Variable 247,975 261,310 8,340               
2017 Series B 2047 Index 100,000 125,000
2017 Series C 2017-2047 0.95 - 4.00/Variable 166,070 173,360 3,955               
2017 Series D 2018-2047 1.00 - 4.00/Variable 169,230 174,990 3,315               
2017 Series E 2018-2057 0.85 - 3.90 46,380 49,870 905                  
2017 Series F 2018-2048 0.00 - 4.00/Variable 168,290 229,165 4,050               
2018 Series A 2018-2048 1.40 - 4.00/Variable 164,025 2,980               
2018 Series B 2018-2048 1.80 - 4.00/Variable 164,240 2,820               
2018 Series C 2019-2048 1.70 - 4.00/Variable 163,025 4,015               
2018 Series D 2019-2058 1.85 - 4.40 70,645 125                  
2018 Series E 2019-2049 0.00 - 4.25/Variable 143,520 1,780               

4,223,540 4,017,351 225,960           
Plus unamortized bond premium 36,500 35,432

Total Housing Mortgage Finance Bonds 4,260,040 4,052,783

December 31,
Outstanding Amount
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The amounts due within one year in the previous table include the total outstanding balance of variable 
rate demand bond obligations where the standby bond purchase agreements expire within one year of 
the balance sheet date, although the maturities extend well beyond.  The value of these obligations as 
of December 31, 2018 is $38,710,000.  It is the intention of the Authority to renew these agreements 
prior to expiration. 

Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance Program Special Obligation Bonds

Amount Due
Maturity Interest Rate Within 1

Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

Series SNH-8 2008-2037 4.00 - 4.875 $ $ 6,515 $
Series 13 2012-2040 2.00 - 5.00 10,655 10,965 310
Series 16 2011-2030 1.00 - 5.00 9,525 10,385 890
Series 18 2017-2046 1.40 - 4.45 9,680 9,885 210
Series 19 2017-2035 1.40 - 4.25 9,400 9,900 505
Series 20 2017-2045 1.40 - 4.40 3,680 3,765 85
Series 21 2017-2045 1.45 - 4.70 12,525 12,850 330
Series 23 2019-2048 1.80 - 4.30 3,720 60
Series 24 2019-2037 1.80 - 4.10 6,310 215

65,495 64,265 2,605
Plus unamortized bond premium 558 518

Total Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance
   Program Special Obligation Bonds 66,053 64,783

Single Family Special Obligation Bonds

Amount Due
Maturity Interest Rate Within 1

Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

Series 2009-1 2019-2035 3.01 $ 40,500 $ 41,860 $ 370                   
Series 2009-2 2035-2041 3.01 45,110 46,630                          
Series 2009-3 2019-2038 2.32 55,940 59,360 120                   
Series 2009-4 2038-2041 2.32 11,090 11,780                          
Series 2010-1 2011-2030 0.40 - 4.25 29,115 36,550 3,710
Series 2011-2 2017-2026 2.375 - 4.50 24,250 29,535 4,395
Series 2011-3 2012-2031 4.50 6,410 11,495 410

212,415 237,210 9,005
Plus unamortized bond premium 516 859

Total Single Family Special Obligation Bonds 212,931 238,069

Outstanding Amount
December 31,

Outstanding Amount
December 31,
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Multifamily Special Obligation Bonds

Amount Due
Maturity Interest Rate Within 1

Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

Series 2009-1 2012-2051 2.32 $ 24,570 $ 25,030 $ 480

Total Multifamily Special Obligation Bonds 24,570 25,030 480

Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds (Single Family) Other Bonds

Amount Due
Maturity Interest Rate Within 1

Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

2010 Series A 2042-2045 5.00 $ 8,947 $ 8,516 $
2011 Series A 2042-2046 4.625 9,675 9,242

Total Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds 18,622 17,758 -                    
   (Single Family) Other Bonds

Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds (Multifamily) Other Bonds

Amount Due
Maturity Interest Rate Within 1

Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

2011 Series A 2052-2055 4.75 $ 971 $ 926 $
2013 Series A 2013-2053 5.50/Variable 25,082 25,319 251

Total Housing Mortgage Finance Program Bonds 26,053 26,245 251
   (Multifamily) Other Bonds

Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds

Amount Due
Maturity Interest Rate Within 1

Dates Range % 2018 2017 Year

2015 Series A (1,2) 2016-2034 4.35 $ 4,880 $ 5,063 $ 195
2016 Series B 2017-2035 3.94 2,252 2,371 120
2016 Series C 2017-2036 3.94 1,706 1,801 95

Total Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds 8,838 9,235 410

Total Bonds Payable, Net $ 4,617,107 $ 4,433,903 $ 238,711

Outstanding Amount
December 31,

Outstanding Amount
December 31,

Outstanding Amount
December 31,

Outstanding Amount
December 31,
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Conduit Debt   

The Authority has also issued conduit debt obligations.  The current principal balances of these conduit 
debt obligations as of December 31, 2018 include one series totaling $2,970,854 of Multifamily Housing 
Revenue Notes, one series totaling $9,944,875 of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, two series 
totaling $22,370,000 of Variable Rate Demand Housing Revenue Bonds and five series totaling 
$88,630,000 of State-Supported Special Obligation Bonds.  As of December 31, 2017, one series 
totaling 3,000,000 of Multifamily Housing Revenue Notes, one series totaling $10,379,000 of Multifamily 
Housing Revenue Bonds, one series totaling $16,480,000 of Special Needs Housing Mortgage Finance 
Program Special Obligation Bonds, two series totaling $23,300,000 of Variable Rate Demand Housing 
Revenue Bonds and four series totaling $78,190,000 of State-Supported Special Obligation Bonds 
were outstanding.  The issuance of these obligations does not create or imply any indebtedness on the 
part of the Authority.  Each issue requires that the funds related to such issue be held by a trustee for 
the bondholders; therefore, such funds are not under the control of the Authority, and, accordingly, the 
Authority’s financial statements do not reflect the balances or operating results of the various trust 
accounts. 

Debt Service Requirements 

The following tables provide a summary of debt service requirements and net swap payments for the 
next five years and in five-year increments thereafter (in 000’s).  The interest calculations are based on 
the variable rates in effect on December 31, 2018 and may not be indicative of the actual interest 
expense that will be incurred. 

Interest
Year Ending Rate
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Swaps, Net Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 142,955     $ 95,554       $ 44,295       $ 29,562       $ 12,191       $ 187,250     $ 137,307     $ 324,557     
2020 120,255     92,292       16,785       28,365       11,790       137,040     132,447     269,487     
2021 139,665     89,731       22,535       28,602       11,333       162,200     129,666     291,866     
2022 119,910     86,675       27,070       27,948       10,783       146,980     125,406     272,386     
2023 120,475     83,891       31,215       27,120       10,124       151,690     121,135     272,825     
2024-2028 581,330     371,219     177,700     120,550     38,874       759,030     530,643     1,289,673  
2029-2033 550,300     276,085     262,305     90,458       20,018       812,605     386,561     1,199,166  
2034-2038 470,925     183,639     253,230     58,337       6,812         724,155     248,788     972,943     
2039-2043 413,635     99,832       178,720     33,431       3,661         592,355     136,924     729,279     
2044-2048 222,915     32,723       246,615     12,046       1,804         469,530     46,573       516,103     
2049-2053 54,725       9,928                                                               54,725       9,928         64,653       
2054-2058 25,980       2,203                                                               25,980       2,203         28,183       

Total $ 2,963,070  $ 1,423,772  $ 1,260,470  $ 456,419     $ 127,390     $ 4,223,540  $ 2,007,581  $ 6,231,121  

Fixed Variable Including Swapped Total Bond Resolution

Bond Resolution

 
 



CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

42 

Year Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2019 $ 2,605         $ 2,562         $ 9,005         $ 6,279         $ 480            $ 568            
2020 2,700         2,493         8,515         6,003         480            557            
2021 2,780         2,407         9,360         5,715         510            545            
2022 2,880         2,318         9,265         5,387         530            533            
2023 2,965         2,222         8,620         5,043         540            521            
2024-2028 15,630       9,287         39,455       21,273       3,000         2,405         
2029-2033 13,385       6,322         45,255       15,243       3,550         2,029         
2034-2038 11,120       3,787         52,730       8,342         4,230         1,583         
2039-2043 8,215         1,522         30,210       1,260         5,010         1,053         
2044-2048 3,215         246                                                5,970         422            
2049-2053                                                                         270            10              
2054-2058                                                                                                             

Total $ 65,495       $ 33,166       $ 212,415     $ 74,545       $ 24,570       $ 10,226       

Fixed Fixed Fixed
Special Needs Indenture SFSOB Resolution MFSOB Resolution

 
 

Year Ending 
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2019 $ 251            $ 1,365         $ 410            $ 364            $ 348,446     
2020 265            1,351         424            347            292,622     
2021 280            1,336         438            329            315,566     
2022 296            1,320         452            311            295,678     
2023 312            1,303         468            292            295,111     
2024-2028 1,847         6,232         2,585         1,152         1,392,539  
2029-2033 2,430         5,649         3,053         568            1,296,650  
2034-2038 3,197         4,882         1,008         48              1,063,870  
2039-2043 15,965       20,164                                           812,678     
2044-2048 12,400       30,058                                           568,414     
2049-2053 7,062         2,500                                             74,495       
2054-2058 370            2,446                                             30,999       

Total $ 44,675       $ 78,606       $ 8,838         $ 3,411         $ 6,787,068  

Other Bond Resolutions QECB Resolution
Fixed Fixed

 
Objective of the Interest Rate Swaps 

The Authority employs swaps to establish synthetic fixed rates for a portion of its variable rate bond 
obligations.  The Authority’s interest rate swap transactions are structured for the Authority to pay a 
fixed interest rate while receiving variable interest rates from the counterparties which are comparable 
to the rates required by the variable rate bonds.  These synthetic fixed rates were lower than those 
available to the Authority from fixed rate obligations of comparable maturity.  The proceeds of these 
transactions are generally used to make fixed rate mortgage loans.  As the objective of the derivative 
instruments entered into was to hedge changes in cash flows for each bond series, they are classified 
as cash flow hedges. 
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Terms 

The Authority has entered into amortizing interest rate swap agreements under the Bond Resolution in 
which the Authority owes a fixed payment to the counterparties of the swaps. In return, the 
counterparties owe the Authority a payment based on common indices such as The Securities Industry 
and Financial Markets Association Municipal Swap Index (SIFMA) or the London Interbank Offered 
Rate (LIBOR) that is comparable to the rates required by the Authority’s bonds. Only the net difference 
in interest payments is actually exchanged between the Authority and the counterparties. The 
Authority’s amortizing interest rate swap agreements contain scheduled reductions to outstanding 
notional amounts that are projected to follow scheduled or anticipated reductions in bonds payable. The 
Authority did not pay or receive any cash when the swap transactions were initiated.  

The terms, fair values and credit ratings of outstanding swaps as of December 31, 2018 were as 
follows (in 000’s): 

Fixed
Associated Effective Notional Rate Variable Fair Termination Credit % of Total
Bond Issue Date Amount Paid Rate Received Value Date Rating * Outstanding

2018 Series E-2 11/15/18 $ 15,000        2.471% 67% 3M LIBOR $ (1,129)           11/15/48

Total Bank of America, N.A. 15,000        (1,129)           A+/Aa3/AA- 1.85%

2001 Series D-5 12/20/01 $ 16,865        5.360% 167% 3M LIBOR-SIFMA (2,280)           11/15/27
2012 Series D-3 12/20/01 40,000        4.090% 67% 1M LIBOR (7,290)           5/15/33
2014 Series C-2 9/13/05 13,915        3.546% 67% 3M LIBOR (1,132)           11/15/34
2017 Series D-3, 2017 Series F-3, 2018 Series A-3 5/15/18 25,060        2.248% 70% 3M LIBOR (925)              5/15/48
2018 Series B-3 6/4/18 5,252          2.500% 70% 3M LIBOR (1,169)           11/15/48

Total Bank of New York Mellon 101,092      (12,796)         AA-/Aa2/AA 12.48%

2018 Series C-3 & 2018 Series C-4 6/5/02 18,660        4.352% 67% 1M LIBOR (3,626)           5/15/33
2013 Series A 6/5/02 25,000        5.740% 167% 1M LIBOR- SIFMA (8,115)           5/15/33

Total Citibank, NA 43,660        (11,741)         A+/A1/A+ 5.39%

2017 Series D-3, 2018 Series A-3, 2018 Series B-3 2/18/09 73,890        3.430% 67% 3M LIBOR (10,766)         11/15/38
2013 Series A 8/15/08 22,215        3.852% 67% 3M LIBOR (2,425)           11/15/28
2014 Series D-3 2/18/09 20,615        3.433% 67% 3M LIBOR (3,261)           11/15/34
2016 Series B-4 8/15/08 9,855          3.849% 67% 3M LIBOR (2,749)           11/15/38
2016 Series B-4 8/15/08 8,925          3.855% 67% 3M LIBOR (2,090)           11/15/33
2016 Series F-5 8/15/08 27,550        3.845% 67% 3M LIBOR (5,712)           11/15/33

Total FMS Wertmanagement 163,050      (27,003)         AAA/Aaa/WD 20.14%

2018 Series C-3 & 2018 Series C-4 3/7/01 13,515        4.120% 67% 1M LIBOR (2,046)           5/15/32
2017 Series C-3 & 2017 Series F-3 8/1/02 41,605        3.981% 67% 1M LIBOR (6,310)           5/15/33
2013 Series A 3/7/01 23,905        5.475% 167% 1M LIBOR-SIFMA (5,510)           5/15/32
2013 Series C 2/26/14 38,530        2.776% 100% 1M LIBOR (600)              5/15/24

Total Goldman Sachs Mitsui Marine 117,555      (14,466)         AA-/Aa2 14.52%

1998 Series D-4 7/1/98 25,000        6.320% 100% 3M LIBOR (4,058)           11/15/25
2017 Series C-3 & 2018 Series C-3 7/11/01 17,000        4.310% 67% 1M LIBOR (3,006)           5/15/32
2013 Series A 7/11/01 16,865        5.820% 167% 1M LIBOR-SIFMA (3,332)           11/15/27
2016 Series F-5 7/1/98 7,800          4.870% 100% 1W SIFMA (1,768)           11/15/28

Total Merrill Lynch Capital Services * * 66,665        (12,164)         NR/A3/A+ 8.23%

2013 Series B-6 & 2016 Series E 6/15/15 38,540        2.0515% 67% 3M LIBOR (276)              11/15/35
2015 Series C 8/6/15 45,000        2.3625% 70% 1M LIBOR (315)              11/15/45
2016 Series A 11/16/15 40,000        2.1325% 67% 3M LIBOR 637                11/15/45
2016 Series B-4 11/15/18 21,220        2.1400% 70% 1M LIBOR 450                11/15/46
2016 Series E-3 8/25/16 21,695        1.7970% 67% 3M LIBOR 1,940             11/15/46
2017 Series A-3 3/2/17 38,000        2.3350% 67% 3M LIBOR (267)              11/15/47

Total Royal Bank of Canada 204,455      2,169             AA-/Aa2/AA 25.25%

2018 Series E-2, 2017 Series C-3, 2018 Series C-3
   & 2018 Series C-4 11/15/18 15,000        2.242% 67% 3M LIBOR (780)              11/15/28
2018 Series B-3 6/4/18 5,253          2.071% 70% 3M LIBOR 869                5/15/28

Total TD Bank, NA 20,253        89                  AA-/Aa1/AA- 2.50%

2017 Series F-3 10/4/00 23,215        5.397% 100% 1W SIFMA (4,863)           11/15/31
2013 Series A 3/2/06 41,650        3.4175% 67% 3M LIBOR (5,246)           5/15/36
2016 Series F-5 11/15/16 13,150        1.820% 67% 3M LIBOR 233                11/15/46

Total Wells Fargo Bank, NA 78,015        (9,876)           A+/Aa2/AA- 9.64%

Portfolio Total $ 809,745      $ (86,917)         100.00%

  * S&P/Moody's/Fitch
 ** Credit support by Merrill Lynch Derivative Products AG (AA/Aa3/NR)

Counterparty
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Fair Value 

There is a multi-step process in determining the fair value of the Authority’s swap portfolio.  The first 
step is to determine the settlement price utilizing the Income Approach from “mid market” pricing data. 
Such data consists primarily of observable quotes from the over-the-counter swap markets that fall into 
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.  The second step is to determine the credit valuation adjustment 
(CVA).  The purpose of the CVA is to quantify the nonperformance risk of the reporting entity as well as 
the nonperformance risk of the counterparty.  Default probabilities are derived from credit default swap 
quotes or generic ratings based on borrowing curves that fall into Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.  In 
the final step, to determine fair value, the settlement price is adjusted by the CVAs of both the reporting 
entity’s and counterparty’s payment obligations.  Because interest rates have declined since the 
implementation of the majority of the Authority’s swap agreements, the aggregate fair value is negative 
as indicated in the previous chart. 

Credit Risk 

At December 31, 2018, the Authority was exposed to very limited counterparties’ credit risk due to its 
broad diversification approach.  Furthermore, the fair value of all except five swaps was negative.  
Credit exposure arises when the fair value of a swap is positive due to the obligation of the counterparty 
to make payment to the Authority in the event of termination.   

Basis Risk 

Basis risk is the risk that there may be a difference between the floating rate component of the swap, 
which is based on indices that consist of taxable or tax-exempt market-wide averages, and the rate on 
the Authority’s variable rate bonds, which is based on that specific bond issue.  CHFA’s basis risk is 
within the Authority’s acceptable tolerance levels. 

Termination Risk 

Counterparties to the Authority’s interest rate swap agreements have default termination rights that may 
require settlement payments by the Authority or by the counterparty based on the fair value of the swap 
at the date of termination.  As of December 31, 2018, no termination events requiring settlement 
payments have occurred. 

Rollover Risk 

The Authority’s interest rate swap agreements have limited rollover risk because the swap agreements 
contain scheduled reductions to outstanding notional amounts which are expected to follow scheduled 
and anticipated reductions in the associated bonds payable.  As of January 1, 2018, nine of the 
Authority’s outstanding interest rate swap agreements provided the Authority with full or partial 
termination rights requiring no settlement payments to accommodate unexpected faster paydowns of 
the associated bonds as a result of higher repayment of home mortgage loans.  One swap contract 
expired with par termination rights during 2018.  Par termination rights were exercised on one swap 
during 2018.  Lastly, three new swap agreements were established during 2018 with par termination 
rights resulting in ten interest rate swap agreements with these par termination rights remaining in the 
Authority’s interest rate swap portfolio as of December 31, 2018. 
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Contingencies 

Eighteen of the Authority’s thirty-three interest rate swap agreements (outstanding notional amount 
$444,422,500, fair value ($33,980,560)) at December 31, 2018, require the Authority to post collateral 
in the event that the fair value of the interest rate swap falls below specific declining thresholds based 
on declines in the Authority’s credit rating.  As of December 31, 2018, the Authority’s ratings remain at 
AAA/Aaa (S&P/Moody’s) and therefore, was not required to post collateral for any of its outstanding 
swaps. 

Refunding Bonds 

The schedule below summarizes the cash flow savings and economic gain resulting from the 
Authority’s issuance of fixed rate refunding bonds under the Bond Resolution in 2018 and 2017: 

Cash Flow  
Savings Economic Gain

Over Life of Over Life of
Refunded Issue (s) Refunding Issue Refunding Issue Refunding Issue

2018
2008 Series D 2018 Series D Subseries D-1 $ 5,832,034               $ 3,936,256               
2008 Series G

2017
2008 Series B Subseries B-1 2017 Series A Subseries A-4 $ 13,894,828             $ 10,842,085             
2008 Series B Subseries B-2 2017 Series A Subseries A-5 187,411                  1,475,604               
2007 Series B Subseries B-4 2017 Series E Subseries E-2 1,878,565               1,367,420                
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NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

The changes in long-term liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 were as follows 
(in 000’s): 

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2018 Increase Decrease 2018

Escrow deposits $ 138,627 $ 31,376 $ (22,264) $ 147,739
Bonds payable, net 4,199,893 729,464 (550,961) 4,378,396
Derivative instruments-
   interest rate swaps 110,830 66,260 (90,173) 86,917
Net OPEB liability 67,722 6,579 (11,154) 63,147
Net pension liability 67,070 31,838 (31,012) 67,896

$ 4,584,142 $ 865,517 $ (705,564) $ 4,744,095

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

2017 Increase Decrease 2017

Escrow deposits $ 136,004 $ 47,281 $ (44,658) $ 138,627
Bonds payable, net 3,978,220 1,058,828 (837,155) 4,199,893
Derivative instruments-
   interest rate swaps 127,451 57,114 (73,735) 110,830
Net OPEB liability 65,649 6,377 (4,304) 67,722
Net pension liability 69,628 34,700 (37,258) 67,070

$ 4,376,952 $ 1,204,300 $ (997,110) $ 4,584,142

 
 
NOTE 10 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

The Authority reports interfund balances among its funds which are reflected on the combining 
schedule of net position as “due from/due to other funds/component units”.  These balances generally 
consist of accruals of various revenues or expenses due to a fund, but received or paid to another, and 
transfers between funds to meet liquidity requirements.  These transactions and resulting year-end 
interfund balances have been eliminated in the accompanying combining financial statements.  The 
composition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2018 is as follows: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General and Capital
 Reserve Fund Multifamily Real Estate Owned $ 2,300,000

Single Family Special Obligation Bond Fund 74,584
Multifamily Special Obligation Bond Fund 120,910
Insurance Fund 151,181

$ 2,646,675       
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During the year, operating transfers are used to reallocate or move resources from one fund to another 
and are reflected on the combining schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.  In 
2018, $1,005,583 was transferred from the General Fund to the Special Needs Fund to reallocate bad 
debt recoveries.   

NOTE 11 - OTHER LIABILITIES 

On certain bond issues, the Authority’s earnings from the investment of bond proceeds are limited per 
Federal Income Tax rules.  Yields in excess of Federal Limits are payable to the U.S. Treasury and are 
recorded as a liability.  As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Authority had no such liability.  

NOTE 12 - NET POSITION 

Net position consisted of the following (in 000’s): 

2018 2017*

General and Capital Reserve Funds:
   Net investment in capital assets $ 3,046 $ 3,465 
   General and Capital Reserve Funds 734,669 782,437 
Other Funds:
   Housing Mortgage Insurance Fund 3,506 3,708 
   Single Family Special Obligation Bond and Other Bond Funds 3,661 3,566 
   Multifamily Special Obligation Bond and Other Bond Funds 2,485 2,079 
   Special Needs Housing Funds 20,400 18,118 
   Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds 197 134 
Component Units:
   CHFA-Small Properties, Inc. 775 719 

$ 768,739 $ 814,226

December 31, 

 
* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2) 

NOTE 13 - PENSION PLAN  

Plan Description 

Eligible employees of the Authority participate in the Connecticut State Employees’ Retirement System 
(SERS) which is administered by the State Employees’ Retirement Commission.  SERS is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS) established in 
1939 and governed by Sections 5-152 to 5-192 of the Connecticut General Statutes.  Detailed 
information about the total Plan’s funding status and progress, contributions required and fiduciary net 
position can be found in the Connecticut State Employees’ Retirement System GASB Statement 68 
Report available at www.osc.ct.gov/rbsd/reports/index.html. 
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SERS provides retirement, disability and health benefits, and annual cost-of-living allowances to plan 
members and their beneficiaries.  Employees are covered under one of five tiers.  All Authority 
employees are classified as nonhazardous duty.  A summary of plan benefits and required 
contributions for nonhazardous duty members is represented in the following table: 

Tier I Tier II Tier IIA Tier III Tier IV

Eligibility - hire date Prior to On or after On or after On or after On or after

July 1, 1984 July 1, 1984 July 1, 1997 July 1, 2011 July 1, 2017

Final Average Earnings      Average Salary of 3

  (FAE) highest paid years of service

Benefit Plan B

2% of FAE x years of service up 1.3% of FAE x years of service

to age 65. Thereafter, 1% of FAE

up to $4,800 plus 2% of FAE in

excess of $4,800. At age 70, 

greater of 1.25% of FAE up to 

$4,800 plus 2.5% of FAE in excess

of $4,800 x years of service or 1% of

FAE up to $4,800 plus 2% of FAE in

excess of $4,800 x years of service.

Plan C

2% of FAE x years of service. At

age 70, greater of 2.5% of FAE x

years of service (max 20 years) or

 2% of FAE x years of service.

Vesting 10 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 10 years of service 10 years of service

Normal Retirement Age 55 with 25 years Age 63 with 25 years Age 63 with 25 years

Age 60 with 10 years Age 65 with 10 years Age 65 with 10 years

Age 70 with 5 years

Early Retirement Age 55 with 10 years Age 55 with 10 years Age 55 with 10 years Age 58 with 10 years Age 58 with 10 years

Member Contributions Plan B

 (prior to 7/1/17) 2% of earnings up to None 2% of earnings 2% of earnings n/a

social security wage base

plus 5% of earnings above

that level

Plan C

5% of earnings

Member Contributions Plan B

 (Effective 7/1/17) 3.5% of earnings up to 1.5% of earnings 3.5% of earnings 3.5% of earnings * 6.5% of earnings

social security wage base

plus 5% of earnings above

that level

Plan C

6.5% of earnings

Age 70 with 5 years

1.625% of FAE x years of service over 35 years

If eligible for retirement prior

to July 1, 2022

Age 62 with 10 years

Age 60 with 25 years

Age 70 with 5 years

If NOT eligible for retirement 

prior to July 1, 2022

Age 65 with 10 year

Age 63 with 25 years

of breakpoint x years of service up to a max of 35 years plus

Average Salary of 3 Average Salary of 5

highest paid years of service highest paid years of service

1.4 % of FAE plus 0.433% of FAE in excess

 
 
An increase to all non-Tier IV member contribution rates of 0.5% will be effective July 1, 2019. 

* In years where plan asset losses require further increases in contributions, Tier IV employees’ 
contributions may increase by half the necessary increase in rates (up to 2%).  All Tier IV employees 
must contribute 1% to the Defined Contribution (DC) portion of the Hybrid Plan and may elect 
additional contributions of up to 3% of salary to the DC portion. 
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The 2011 State Employees Bargaining Agent Coalition Agreement (Agreement) provides current Tier II 
and Tier IIA members who remain employed after July 1, 2022, the opportunity for a one-time 
irrevocable election to retain the normal retirement eligibility in place prior to the Agreement.  The 
election would require an additional employee contribution based on their original eligible retirement 
date.  Under the prior agreement, normal retirement eligibility was age 60 and 25 years of service or 
age 62 and 10 years of service. All plans provide for death and disability benefits.  

The contribution requirements of plan members and the State are established and may be amended by 
the State legislature subject to the contractual rights established by collective bargaining.  Individuals 
hired on or after July 1, 2011 otherwise eligible for the Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) are eligible to 
become members of the Hybrid Plan in addition to their other existing choices.  The Hybrid Plan has 
defined benefits identical to Tier II/IIA and Tier III for individuals hired on or after July 1, 2011, but 
requires employee contributions 3% higher than the contribution required from the applicable Tier 
II/IIA/III plan.  The State is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. 

The Authority’s contractually required contribution rates for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 
2017 were 34.08% and 36.90%, respectively, of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount 
that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  
Contributions to the pension plan from the Authority were $4,517,904 and $4,909,189 for the years 
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

As of December 31, 2018, the Authority reported a liability of $67,896,479 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
that date.  The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Authority’s long-term share of contributions to the plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating governmental units.  The Authority’s proportion was 0.31308% as of June 30, 2018. 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $7,507,996.  At 
December 31, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2,396,499              $
Changes in assumptions 7,398,084              
Net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on pension plan investments 212,872                 
Changes in proportion and differences
   between employer contributions and
   proportionate share of contributions 4,287,676              8,154,006              
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 2,693,126              

$ 16,775,385            $ 8,366,878              
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Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension, $2,693,126 resulting 
from Authority contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability for the year ended December 31, 2019.  Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending December 31,

2019 $ 2,832,304          
2020 2,091,400          
2021 354,256             
2022 368,879             
2023 68,542               

$ 5,715,381          

 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined based on the annual actuarial valuation report prepared as of 
June 30, 2018.  The total pension liability was based on the results of an actuarial experience study for 
the period July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2015.  The key actuarial assumptions are summarized below: 

 Inflation 2.50% 
 Salary increases 3.50% - 19.50% including inflation 
 Cost of living 1.95% - 3.25% 
 Investment rate of return 6.9%, net of pension plan investment 
   expense, including inflation 
 
The RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Table projected to 2020 by scale BB at 100% for males and 95% 
for females is used for the period after service retirement and for dependent beneficiaries. The 
RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table at 65% for males and 85% for females is used for the period 
after disability.  

Investment Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation.   
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The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table: 

Target
Asset Class Allocation

Large Cap U.S. Equities 21.0 %  5.8 %
Developed Non-U.S. Equities 18.0 6.6
Emerging Market (Non-U.S.) 9.0 8.3
Real Estate 7.0 5.1
Private Equity 11.0 7.6
Alternative Investments 8.0 4.1
Fixed Income (Core) 8.0 1.3
High Yield Bonds 5.0 3.9
Emerging Market Bonds 4.0 3.7
Inflation Linked Bonds 5.0 1.0
Cash 4.0 0.4

Rate of Return
Expected Real

Long-Term

 
 
Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2018 was 6.9%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from the participating governmental 
units will be made equal to the difference between the projected actuarially determined contribution and 
actual member contributions.  Projected future benefit payments for all current plan members were 
projected through the year 2138.  Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total plan liability and a municipal bond rate was not 
used in determining the discount rate. 

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate  

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 6.9%, as well as the what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 
1 percentage point higher than the current rate. 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(5.90%) (6.90%) (7.90%)

Authority's proportionate share of 
   net pension liability $ 81,021,453        $ 67,896,479  $ 56,945,110      

 
Fiduciary Plan Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of Connecticut. 
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NOTE 14 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

Plan Description 

The State provides postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits in accordance with State 
statutes, Section 5-257(d) and 5-259(a), to all eligible employees who retire from the State, including 
employees of the Authority.  The benefits are provided through the State of Connecticut State 
Employee OPEB Plan (the Plan), a cost sharing single-employer defined benefit plan administered by 
the State of Connecticut.  The Plan does not issue stand-alone financial statements; however, financial 
statements for the Plan are included as part of the State of Connecticut’s Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report that is publicly available. 

Under a cost-sharing plan, OPEB obligations for employees of all employers are pooled, and plan 
assets are available to pay the benefits of the employees of any participating employer providing OPEB 
benefits through the plan, regardless of the status of the employers’ payment of their OPEB obligation 
to the plan.  

Benefits Provided 

When employees retire, the State pays up to 100% of their healthcare insurance premium cost 
(including dependents’ coverage), depending on the plan. The State currently pays up to 20% of the 
cost for retiree dental insurance (including dependents’ coverage) depending on the plan. In addition, 
the State pays 100% of the premium cost for a portion of the employees’ life insurance continued after 
retirement.  The amount of life insurance, continued at no cost to the retiree, is determined based on 
the number of years of service that the retiree had with the State at the time of retirement as follows:  
(a) if the retiree had 25 years or more of service, the amount of insurance will be one-half of the amount 
of insurance for which the retiree was insured immediately prior to retirement, but the reduced amount 
cannot be less than $10,000; (b) if the retiree had less than 25 years of service, the amount of 
insurance will be the proportionate amount that such years of service is to 25, rounded to the nearest 
$100 of coverage.  The State finances the cost of postemployment healthcare and life insurance 
benefits on a pay-as you-go basis through an appropriation in the State’s General Fund. 

Contributions 

In accordance with the Revised State Employees Bargaining Agent Coalition (SEBAC) 2011 
Agreement between the State of Connecticut and SEBAC, all employees shall pay a 3% retiree 
healthcare insurance contribution for a period of 10 years or retirement, whichever is sooner. 
Participants of Tier I, Tier II and Tier IIA shall be required to have 10 years of actual state service to be 
eligible for retirement health insurance. Participants of Tier III and Tier IV shall be required to have 
15 years of actual state service to be eligible for retirement health insurance. Deferred vested retirees 
who are eligible for retiree health insurance shall be required to meet the rule of 75, which is the 
combination of age and actual state service equaling 75 in order to begin receiving retiree health 
insurance based on applicable SEBAC agreement. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to OPEB  

At December 31, 2018, the Authority reported a liability of $63,147,471 for its proportionate share of the 
net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was determined based on a roll-forward to June 30, 2018 of 
the annual actuarial valuation report prepared as of June 30, 2017.  The Authority’s proportion of the 
net OPEB liability was based on the Authority’s actuarially required contribution for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 relative to all other contributing employers. The Authority’s proportion was 0.365767% 
as of June 30, 2018. 
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For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Authority recognized OPEB expense of $3,836,867.  At 
December 31, 2018 the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Changes in assumptions $ $ 3,417,103            
Net difference between projected and actual
   earnings on OPEB plan investments 28,541                 57,497                 
Changes in proportionate share and difference between
   amount contributed and proportionate share of contributions 1,012,266            3,437,701            
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent to the
   measurement date 1,603,409            

$ 2,644,216            $ 6,912,301            

 
Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $1,603,409 resulting 
from Authority contributions made subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net OPEB liability for the year ended December 31, 2019.  Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in 
the Authority’s OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ending December 31,

2019 $ 1,350,064          
2020 1,350,064          
2021 1,350,072          
2022 1,289,384          
2023 531,910             

$ 5,871,494          

 
Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2018 roll forward actuarial valuation was determined using key 
actuarial assumptions summarized as follows: 

 Payroll growth rate 3.50% 
 

 Salary increases 3.25% - 19.5% varying by years of service  
 

 Discount rate 3.95% as of June 30, 2018 
  3.68% as of June 30, 2017 
 

 Healthcare cost trend rates:  
    Medical 6.50% graded to 4.50% over 4 years 
    Prescription drug 8.00% graded to 4.50% over 7 years 
    Dental and Part B 4.50% 
    Administrative expense 3.00% 
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The RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Table projected to 2020 by scale BB at 100% for males and 95% 
for females for healthy participants and the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table at 65% for males 
and 85% for females is used for disabled participants. These assumptions are applied to all periods 
included in the measurement.  

Investment Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.   

The June 30, 2018 expected arithmetic returns over the long-term (20 years) by asset class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Target
Asset Class Allocation

Large Cap U.S. Equities 21.0 %  5.8 %
Developed Non-U.S. Equities 18.0 6.6
Emerging Market (Non-U.S.) 9.0 8.3
Real Estate 7.0 5.1
Private Equity 11.0 7.6
Alternative Investments 8.0 4.1
Fixed Income (Core) 8.0 1.3
High Yield Bonds 5.0 3.9
Emerging Market Bonds 4.0 3.7
Inflation Linked Bonds 5.0 1.0
Cash or cash equivalents 4.0 0.4

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

 
Discount Rate 

The discount rate is a blend of the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB Trust assets and a yield 
or index rate for 20-year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of 
AA/Aa or higher (3.87% as of June 30, 2018 and 3.58% as of June 30, 2017). The final discount rate 
used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.95% as of June 30. 2018. The blending is based on the 
sufficiency of projected assets to make projected benefit payments. 

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate  

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the 
discount rate of 3.95%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(2.95%) (3.95%) (4.95%)

Authority's proportionate share of 
   net OPEB liability $ 73,246,455        $ 63,147,471          $ 54,946,448      
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Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the 
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the 
current healthcare cost trend rate as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1 percentage point lower 
or 1 percentage point higher than the current rates: 

Current
1% Healthcare Cost 1%

Decrease Trend Rate Increase

Authority's proportionate share of 
   net OPEB liability $ 53,787,014        $ 63,147,471          $ 75,008,523     

 
 

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES  

The Authority is a party to financial instruments with risk in connection with its commitments to provide 
financing that is not included on the statements of net position.  These expose the Authority to credit 
risk in excess of the amount recognized on the statements of net position.  The Authority’s exposure to 
credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the borrowers is represented by the contractual amount 
of those instruments.  The Authority uses the same credit policies in making commitments and 
conditional obligations as it does for instruments that are included on the statement of net position.  
Total credit exposure is summarized below (in 000’s): 

2018 2017

Mortgage Loan Commitments:
   Home Mortgage Program Purchases $ 105,718         $ 79,928           
   Multifamily Developments 97,497           118,026         
   Reverse Annuity Mortgage 246                322                
   Emergency Mortgage Assistance (EMAP) 6,353             11,181           

$ 209,814         $ 209,457         

 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a borrower as long as there is no violation of 
any condition established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  The Authority evaluates each borrower’s credit 
worthiness on a case-by-case basis.  The amount of collateral obtained if deemed necessary by the 
Authority upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. 
Collateral held is primarily residential and multifamily properties.  Interest rates on approved mortgage 
loan commitments are fixed. 

CHFA is involved in certain litigation and disputes incidental to its operations.  Because it is generally 
difficult to predict the outcome of lawsuits, CHFA cannot give any assurance as to the outcome of such 
litigation.  Based on the information it presently possesses, however, it is management’s judgment that 
such litigation will not have a material adverse impact upon the financial condition of the Authority. 
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The Authority offers mortgage insurance through the CHFA Insurance Fund. CHFA mortgage insurance 
is permitted on a case-by-case basis when FHA insurance and VA guarantees are not available and 
PMI insurance is either not available for the home or has been declined for a reason that would not 
prevent CHFA from issuing an insurance commitment.  The CHFA Insurance Fund receives annual 
premiums from participating borrowers. The accumulation of these premiums is used to fund any 
claims.  Premiums are collected until the LTV reaches certain thresholds at which such time the 
insurance coverage is terminated.  As of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Authority 
had $13,858,000 and $15,052,000, respectively, of outstanding home mortgage loans that are insured 
under this program.  For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the claims paid from the 
CHFA Insurance Fund were $337,000 and $563,000, respectively. 

 
NOTE 16 - STATE AND FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

Pursuant to Public Act No. 05-228 (CIA), the Authority was receiving a 25% distribution of funds held in 
the State of Connecticut’s land protection, affordable housing and historic preservation account for the 
purpose of supplementing new or existing affordable housing programs.  Effective May 28, 2014, and 
pursuant to Public Act No. 14-45 passed on said date, distribution of these funds was redirected to the 
State of Connecticut’s Department of Housing.  The Authority is currently spending down the funds 
received in prior years. 

The rights of certain property owners are protected in Connecticut foreclosure actions by § 8-265cc 
through 8-265kk of the Connecticut General Statutes known as the Emergency Mortgage Assistance 
Payment (EMAP) Program.  These provisions allow homeowners the opportunity to avoid foreclosure 
by enabling them to obtain financial assistance from the State, acting through the Authority.  A qualified 
homeowner may obtain funds under this program to bring a delinquent mortgage current, and may also 
obtain assistance with subsequent mortgage payments to a maximum period of 60 months.  During 
2018 and 2017, the Authority received $0 and $10,000,000 respectively, from the State of Connecticut 
to be used in support of the EMAP program pursuant to a memorandum of understanding between the 
Authority and the State of Connecticut, Office of Policy and Management.  Unspent funds are held by 
the Authority in escrow until expended on the program. Only when funds are spent are they recognized 
as program revenue and expenses.  During 2011, the Authority issued $20,000,000 in conduit debt 
under its Special Needs Indenture in support of the EMAP Program.  Debt service on these bonds is 
paid by the State of Connecticut. 

In 2018 and 2017, the Authority received $2,000 and $86,000 respectively, in grant funds from the 
Neighborhood Reinvestment Corporation (dba Neighborworks America), a non-profit, public corporation 
chartered by the Congress of the United States for the National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling 
(NFMC) Program.  These funds were made available through the 2008 Consolidated Appropriations 
Act and the 2008 Housing and Economic Recovery Act and are subject to the terms and conditions of 
the grant agreement entered into between Neighborworks America and the Authority.  Funding began 
with Round 1 in 2008 and ended with Round 10 in 2016. Congress discontinued further appropriations 
for the NFMC Program in 2017. The $2,000 in funds received in 2018 represent the remainder of the 
Round 10 funding. 

In 2018 and 2017, the Authority received $224,000 and $143,000, respectively, in Comprehensive 
Counseling (CC) grant funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; the 
purpose being to provide counseling and advice to tenants and homeowners to assist them in 
improving their housing conditions and fulfilling the responsibilities of tenancy or homeownership.  The 
funds were made available through Section 106 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 
and Section 4 of the Department of Housing and Urban Development Act as amended by Title XIV of 
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, the use of which is subject to the 
terms and conditions of the grant agreement. 
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The Qualified Energy Conservation Bond (QECB) program was established under the Economic 
Stabilization Act of 2008 (Act) and is governed by certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (Code).  Pursuant to the Act and Code, QECBs are qualified tax credit bonds where 
the U.S. Treasury subsidizes a portion of the bond interest payment equal to 70% of the tax credit bond 
rate. The interest subsidy due or received in 2018 and 2017 was $248,000 and $244,000, respectively.   

The goal of ending chronic homelessness was set when the State of Connecticut’s governor signed 
onto the “Zero:2016” initiative.  In furtherance of reaching this goal, the Authority committed to 
contributing $5,000,000 over ten years to fund supportive housing rental subsidies.  The funding is to 
be made first from State funds on hand resulting from CHFA’s administration of the State’s supportive 
housing program.  Once the designated State funds are exhausted, Financing Adjustment Factor (FAF) 
funds obtained from an agreement between the Authority and U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) will be used to fund the balance of the subsidy.  In 2018 and 2017, the Authority 
funded $-0- and $500,000 towards this commitment, respectively. 

The Authority manages a Down Payment Assistance Program (DAP) that helps single family borrowers 
purchase their first home.  The DAP allows first time homebuyers access to additional assistance in the 
form of a 2nd mortgage loan for up to 100% combined loan to value. The average DAP loan made 
during 2018 was $8,500, with approximately 36% of borrowers participating in the program.  During 
2018, the Authority received $12,000,000 from the State of Connecticut to further capitalize the 
program. 

Activity under these programs for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 is summarized below 
(in 000’s): 

2018 2018
Program Program
Funding Expenses Net

PA 05-228 $ 249 $ (249) 
EMAP 1,655 1,655  
NFMC 2 2  
CC 224 224  
QECB 248 248  
ZERO 16  
DAP 12,000 12,000 

$ 14,129 $ 2,378 $ 11,751 

2017 2017
Program Program
Funding Expenses Net

PA 05-228 $ 654 $ (654) 
EMAP 5,279 5,279  
NFMC 86 86  
CC 143 143  
QECB 244 244  
ZERO 16 500 500  

$ 6,252 $ 6,906 $ (654) 
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NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Authority is subject to normal risks associated with its operations including property damage, 
personal injury and employee dishonesty.  All risks are managed through the purchase of commercial 
insurance.  There are two pending claims, neither of which are expected to exceed insurance coverage 
limits if and when settled.   

NOTE 18 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On January 8, 2019, April 4, 2019 and April 9, 2019, the Authority redeemed $7,885,000, $1,575,000 
and $18,675,000, respectively, of various series of outstanding bonds held under the Bond Resolution.  

On March 5, 2019, the Authority issued 2019 Series A fixed rate and variable rate bonds in the amount 
of $122,980,000 under the Bond Resolution. The bond proceeds were used to refund a portion of the 
Authority’s outstanding bonds and to fund the purchase of single family whole loans and mortgage 
backed securities. On the same date, CHFA entered into a Stand-By Bond Purchase Agreement with 
U.S. Bank National Association to secure the liquidity needs for 2019 Series A, Subseries A-2 with the 
principal balance of $11,670,000 and a separate Stand-By Bond Purchase Agreement for 2019 Series 
A, Subseries A-3 with a principal balance of $23,330,000.  Additionally, CHFA entered into a 
Remarketing Agreement with U.S. Bancorp Investments, Inc and U.S. Bank Municipal Products Group, 
a division of U.S. Bank National Association, acting jointly as remarketing agent to secure the 
remarketing needs of 2019 Series A Subseries A-2 and A-3. 

 

 



SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.31308% 0.31830% 0.30322% 0.39732% 0.34574%

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 67,896,479$  67,069,565$  69,628,178$  65,653,502$  55,368,069$  

Covered payroll 13,256,124$  13,305,309$  12,735,488$  12,402,952$  11,599,923$  

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a
 percentage of its covered payroll 512.19% 504.08% 546.73% 529.34% 477.31%

Plan fiduciary net position as of percentage 36.62% 36.25% 31.69% 39.23% 39.54%
 of total pension liability

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.   

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY

LAST FIVE YEARS*

CONNECTICUT STATE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (SERS)
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2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 4,517,904 $ 4,909,189 $ 4,553,783 $ 5,449,857 $ 4,387,091

Amount contributed in relation to contractually
 required contribution 4,517,904 4,909,189 4,553,783 5,449,857 4,387,091

Contribution deficiency $ -                       $ -                       $ -                       $ -                       $ -                       

Covered payroll $ 13,256,124 $ 13,305,309 $ 12,735,488 $ 12,402,952 $ 11,599,923

Contributions as a percentage of  
 covered payroll 34.08% 36.90% 35.76% 43.94% 37.82%

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Notes to Schedule

     i.   Non-Hazardous has same retirement eligibility as Tier III      

     ii.  Non-Hazardous benefit multiplier is 1.3% with no breakpoint      

     iii.  Hazardous duty requires 25 years of service to retire

     iv.  Employees contribute 3% more than Tier III employees into the Defined Benefit Plan

     v.   Employers contribute 1% and employees must contribute at least 1% to DC portion of the Hybrid Plan

Changes in assumptions:

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Investment rate of return (net of pension plan 
 investment expense, including inflation) 6.90% 6.90% 6.90% 8.00% 8.00%

Salary increases 3.50% - 19.5% 3.50% - 19.5% 3.50% - 19.5% 4.00% - 20.0% 4.00% - 20.0%

Cost of living adjustments 1.95% - 3.25% 1.95% - 3.25% 2.25% - 3.25% 2.30% - 3.60% 2.30% - 3.60%

Inflation 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 2.75% 2.75%

c. Increase to all non-Tier IV members' contribution rates by 1.5% of compensation effective July 1, 2017 and an additional 0.5% of 
compensation effective July 1, 2019.

d. In years where employer contributions increase due to poor asset returns, half the increase is applied to the Tier IV member 
contribution rate, up to 2% in total.

e. Tier IV Hybrid Plan Structure for all new hires (Non-Hazardous and Hazardous) on or after July 1, 2017:

a. The annual COLA for those retiring on or after July 1, 2022 is based on the annual rate of increase in CPI-W from 0.0% to 2.0%, plus 
60% of the annual rate of increase CPI-W from 3.33% to 6.0%, plus 75% of the annual rate of increase in CPI-W above 6% and with a 
cap on the COLA rate of 7.5%.

b. A COLA moratorium for those retiring on or after July 1, 2022 for the first 30 months of retirement benefits.  If rate of increase in CPI-W 
exceeds an annualized rate of 5.5% during the initial 18 month period of receiving retirement benefits, the COLA provided beginning with 
the 31st monthly benefit includes an additional adjustment based on the annual COLA rate as determined above using the annualized 
rate over the 18 month period.  The COLA rate applied is reduced by 2.5% and then multiplied by 1.5 to reflect the 18 month period.

For the June 30, 2017 valuation, there were several changes in benefit terms:

Changes in benefit terms:

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

CONNECTICUT STATE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (SERS)
LAST FIVE YEARS*
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SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY

2018 2017 2016

Proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.365767% 0.390046% 0.380742%

Proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 63,147,471$  67,722,049$  65,649,161$  

Covered employee payroll 13,256,124$  13,305,309$  12,735,488$  

Proportionate share of the net OPEB liability as a
 percentage of its covered-employee payroll 476.36% 508.99% 515.48%

Plan fiduciary net position as of percentage 4.69% 3.03% 1.94%
 of total OPEB liability

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY

LAST THREE YEARS*
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2018 2017 2016

Contractually required contribution $ 2,933,060 $ 2,603,173 $ 2,317,169

Amount contributed in relation to contractually
 required contribution 2,933,060 2,603,173 2,317,169

Contribution deficiency $ -                          $ -                          $ -                            

Covered employee payroll $ 13,256,124 $ 13,305,309 $ 12,735,488

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
 employee payroll 22.13% 19.56% 18.19%

*This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

Notes to Schedule

Changes in assumptions:

2018 2017 2016

Payroll growth rate 3.50% 3.50% 3.75%

Salary increases 3.25% - 19.5% 3.25% - 19.5% 3.25% - 19.5%

Discount rate 3.95% 3.68% 3.74%

Health care cost trend rates:

   Medical

6.5% graded to 
4.5% over 4 years

6.5% graded to 
4.5% over 4 years

5.00%

   Prescription drug
8.0% graded to 

4.5% over 7 years
8.0% graded to 

4.5% over 7 years
10.0% graded to 

5.0% over 5 years
   Dental and Part B 4.50% 4.50% 5.00%
   Administrative expense 3.00% 3.00% $250 per participant

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 
EMPLOYEES' OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN
LAST THREE YEARS*
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EXHIBIT I

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2018
(in 000’s)

Component 
Units

Single

Family Multifamily

Special Special

Obligation Obligation

General & Housing Bond Bond Special Qualified

Capital Mortgage and Other and Other Needs Energy Multifamily

Reserve Insurance Bond Bond Housing Conservation Real Estate Combined

Funds Fund Funds Funds Funds Bond Fund Owned Eliminations Total

Assets  

Restricted current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 356 $ $  $  $ 8 $  $  $  $ 364

Mortgage loans receivable 125,106  5,220 616 3,105 377  134,424

Investments in securities 494,127 3,650 17,069 6,255 57,111 836 637  579,685

Real estate owned - multifamily      2,300  2,300

Accrued interest receivable on:

Mortgage loans 12,800  1,020 199 368 19   14,406

Securities 5,845 7 35 13 126 1 6,027

Due from other funds/component units 2,647     (2,647) -

Accounts receivable and other assets 59,961  623  731 21 229  61,565

Total current assets 700,842 3,657 23,967 7,083 61,449 1,253 3,167 (2,647) 798,771

Restricted noncurrent assets:

Mortgage loans receivable, net of current portion 2,608,203  195,370 49,348 62,102 8,403   2,923,426

Investments in securities, net of current portion 2,006,046  14,972 1,693    2,022,711

Capital assets, net of depreciation  3,046       3,046

Real estate owned - single family 15,069  1,598     16,667

Total noncurrent assets 4,632,364  - 211,940 49,348 63,795 8,403  -  - 4,965,850

Total assets 5,333,206 3,657 235,907 56,431 125,244 9,656 3,167 (2,647) 5,764,621

Deferred Outflows of Resources  

Unamortized deferral on bond refundings 96,018   38   96,056

Deferred amount for OPEB 2,644 2,644

Deferred amount for pensions 16,775      16,775

Total deferred outflows of resources 115,437  -  -  - 38  -  - 115,475

Liabilities   

Current liabilities:

Escrow deposits and unearned revenue 32,060  (29) 834 6,232 583   39,680

Due to other funds/component units  151 75 121 2,300 (2,647) -

Accrued interest payable 16,717  529 48 115 38   17,447

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,620  118 5 766 92  6,601

Bonds payable 225,960  9,005 731 2,605 410   238,711

Total current liabilities 280,357 151 9,698 1,739 9,718 1,031 2,392 (2,647) 302,439

Noncurrent liabilities

Escrow deposits and unearned revenue, net  

 of current portion 113,708   2,315 31,716   147,739

Bonds payable, net of current portion   4,034,080  222,548 49,892 63,448 8,428   4,378,396

Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps 86,917    86,917

Net OPEB liability 63,147 63,147

Net pension liability 67,896       67,896

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,365,748  - 222,548 52,207 95,164 8,428  -  - 4,744,095

Total liabilities 4,646,105 151 232,246 53,946 104,882 9,459 2,392 (2,647) 5,046,534

Deferred Inflows of Resources   

Deferred amount for OPEB 6,912 6,912

Deferred amount for pensions 8,367 8,367

Derivative financial Instruments 49,544 49,544

Total deferred inflows of resources 64,823  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 64,823

Net Position   

Net investment in capital assets 3,046       3,046

Restricted by bond indentures and/or

 enabling legislation 734,669 3,506 3,661 2,485 20,400 197 775  765,693

Total Net Position $ 737,715 $ 3,506 $ 3,661 $ 2,485 $ 20,400 $ 197 $ 775 $  - $ 768,739

Other Funds
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EXHIBIT I

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2017
(in 000’s)

Component 
Units

Single

Family Multifamily

Special Special

Obligation Obligation

General & Housing Bond Bond Special Qualified

Capital Mortgage and Other and Other Needs Energy Multifamily

Reserve Insurance Bond Bond Housing Conservation Real Estate Combined

Funds Fund Funds Funds Funds Bond Fund Owned Eliminations Total

Assets  

Restricted current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 505 $ $ $ $ 28 $ $ $ $ 533

Mortgage loans receivable 119,407 6,663 588 2,552 361 129,571

Investments in securities 556,362 3,956 16,207 5,918 57,370 987 442 641,242

Real estate owned - multifamily 2,300 2,300

Accrued interest receivable on:

Mortgage loans 14,972 1,228 201 347 20 16,768

Securities 4,603 4 17 7 75 1 4,707

Due from other funds/component units 2,732 (2,732) -

Accounts receivable and other assets 60,995 1,149 725 374 63,243

Total current assets 759,576 3,960 25,264 6,714 61,097 1,368 3,117 (2,732) 858,364

Restricted noncurrent assets:

Mortgage loans receivable, net of current portion 2,731,883 214,619 49,963 58,442 8,780 3,063,687

Investments in securities, net of current portion 1,643,480 18,105 1,808 1,663,393

Capital assets, net of depreciation  3,465 3,465

Real estate owned - single family 14,285 2,198 16,483

Total noncurrent assets 4,393,113 -                 234,922 49,963 60,250 8,780 -                 -                 4,747,028

Total assets 5,152,689 3,960 260,186 56,677 121,347 10,148 3,117 (2,732) 5,605,392

Deferred Outflows of Resources  

Unamortized deferral on bond refundings 91,743 45 91,788

Deferred amount for OPEB 2,666 2,666

Deferred amount for pensions 22,050 22,050

Total deferred outflows of resources 116,459 -                 -                 -                 45 -                 -                 116,504

Liabilities   

Current liabilities:

Escrow deposits and unearned revenue 33,140 801 9,141 739 43,821

Due to other funds/component units 252 60 120 2,300 (2,732) -

Accrued interest payable 15,304 598 48 115 40 16,105

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,987 134 3 744 98 6,966

Bonds payable 221,896 8,530 697 2,490 397 234,010

Total current liabilities 276,327 252 9,322 1,669 12,490 1,176 2,398  (2,732) 300,902

Noncurrent liabilities

Escrow deposits and unearned revenue, net  

 of current portion 107,785 2,351 28,491 138,627

Bonds payable, net of current portion   3,830,886 247,298 50,578 62,293 8,838 4,199,893

Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps 110,830 110,830

Net OPEB liability 67,722 67,722

Net pension liability 67,070 67,070

Total noncurrent liabilities 4,184,293 -                 247,298 52,929 90,784 8,838 -                 -                 4,584,142

Total liabilities 4,460,620 252 256,620 54,598 103,274 10,014 2,398  (2,732) 4,885,044

Deferred Inflows of Resources   

Deferred amount for OPEB 1,701 1,701

Deferred amount for pensions 10,248 10,248

Derivative Financial Instruments 10,677 10,677

Total deferred inflows of resources 22,626 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 22,626

Net Position   

Net investment in capital assets 3,465 3,465

Restricted by bond indentures and/or

 enabling legislation 782,437 3,708 3,566 2,079 18,118 134 719 810,761

Unrestricted deficit

Total Net Position $ 785,902 $ 3,708 $ 3,566 $ 2,079 $ 18,118 $ 134 $ 719 $ -                 $ 814,226

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

Other Funds
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EXHIBIT II

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(in 000’s)

Component 
Units

Single
Family Multifamily
Special Special

Obligation Obligation
General & Housing Bond Bond Special Qualified

Capital Mortgage and Other and Other Needs Energy Multifamily
Reserve Insurance Bond Bond Housing Conservation Real Estate Combined
Funds Fund Funds Funds Funds Bond Fund Owned Eliminations Total

Operating Revenues
Interest on mortgage loans $ 128,032 $ $ 8,569 $ 2,334 $ 3,798 $ 243 $  $  $ 142,976 
Interest on investments 63,593 67 416 71 513 10 (2,295) 62,375 
Fees and other income 10,369 68   121 46  10,604 

Total operating revenues 201,994 135 8,985 2,405 4,432 243 56 (2,295) 215,955 

Operating Expenses
Interest 137,371  7,423 1,999 2,659 131  (2,295) 147,288 
Bond issuance costs 6,377    432 49   6,858 
Servicer fees 11,389  726     12,115 
Administrative 42,057 337 284     42,678 
Provision for losses 14,606  195     14,801 

Total operating expenses 211,800 337 8,628 1,999 3,091 180  - (2,295) 223,740 

Operating Income (Loss) (9,806) (202) 357 406 1,341 63 56 (7,785)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Net decrease in the fair value of investments (49,126)  (262)  (65)   (49,453)
State and federal program funding 12,226    1,655 248   14,129 
State and federal program expenses (475)    (1,655) (248)   (2,378)

Nonoperating income (loss) (37,375)  - (262)  - (65)  -  -  - (37,702)

Income (Loss) before Transfers (47,181) (202) 95 406 1,276 63 56  - (45,487)

Operating Transfers In (Out) (1,006)    1,006     - 

Change in Net Position (48,187) (202) 95 406 2,282 63 56  - (45,487)

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as Restated  785,902 3,708 3,566 2,079 18,118 134 719  - 814,226 
 

Net Position - End of Year $ 737,715 $ 3,506 $ 3,661 $ 2,485 $ 20,400 $ 197 $ 775 $  - $ 768,739 

Other Funds
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EXHIBIT II

CONNECTICUT HOUSING FINANCE AUTHORITY
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
(in 000’s)

Component 
Units

Single
Family Multifamily
Special Special

Obligation Obligation
General & Housing Bond Bond Special Qualified

Capital Mortgage and Other and Other Needs Energy Multifamily
Reserve Insurance Bond Bond Housing Conservation Real Estate Combined
Funds Fund Funds Funds Funds Bond Fund Owned Eliminations Total

Operating Revenues
Interest on mortgage loans $ 136,074 $ $ 9,340 $ 2,360 $ 3,718 $ 260 $  $  $ 151,752 
Interest on investments 49,373 39 219 33 323 3 (2,256) 47,734 
Fees and other income 13,882 80   37 233  14,232 

Total operating revenues 199,329 119 9,559 2,393 4,078 260 236 (2,256) 213,718 

Operating Expenses
Interest 126,424  8,284 2,017 2,817 138  (2,256) 137,424 
Bond issuance costs 7,483    14    7,497 
Servicer fees 10,690  792     11,482 
Administrative 38,191 562 79     38,832 
Provision for losses 2,482  (887)     1,595 

Total operating expenses 185,270 562 8,268 2,017 2,831 138  - (2,256) 196,830 

Operating Income (Loss) 14,059 (443) 1,291 376 1,247 122 236  16,888 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments (6,004)  77  (11)   (5,938)
State and federal program funding 229    5,779 244   6,252 
State and federal program expenses (883)    (5,779) (244)   (6,906)

Nonoperating income (loss) (6,658)  - 77  - (11)  -  -  - (6,592)

Income (Loss) before Transfers 7,401 (443) 1,368 376 1,236 122 236  10,296 

Operating Transfers In (Out) (822)    822     

Change in Net Position 6,579 (443) 1,368 376 2,058 122 236  - 10,296 

Net Position - Beginning of Year, as Restated  779,323 4,151 2,198 1,703 16,060 12 483  - 803,930 
 

Net Position - End of Year $ 785,902 $ 3,708 $ 3,566 $ 2,079 $ 18,118 $ 134 $ 719 $  - $ 814,226 

* Restated for GASB No. 75 implementation (see Note 2)

Other Funds
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